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Introduction
The Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) is
New Zealand’s national environmental regulator,
established as a Crown entity under the Environmental
Protection Authority Act 2011.

promoting sustainable management of the natural
resources of the Exclusive Economic Zone and
Continental Shelf (Exclusive Economic Zone and
Continental Shelf (Environmental Effects) Act 2012)

The EPA’s objectives are to undertake its functions in
ways that:

promoting sustainable management of natural and
physical resources (Resource Management Act 1991, for
proposals of national significance)

contribute to the efficient, effective and transparent
management of New Zealand’s environment and
natural and physical resources
enable New Zealand to meet its
international obligations.
The EPA has specific purposes under the environmental
Acts it manages. These include:
protecting the environment and the health and
safety of people and communities by preventing
or managing the adverse effects of hazardous
substances and new organisms (Hazardous
Substances and New Organisms Act 1996)
implementing, operating and administering an
Emissions Trading Scheme that supports and
encourages global efforts to reduce the emission
of greenhouse gases by:
helping New Zealand meet its international
obligations under the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change and the Kyoto
Protocol to the Convention

helping protect human health and the environment
from adverse effects resulting or likely to result from
human activities that modify or are likely to modify
the ozone layer; phasing out ozone-depleting
substances as soon as possible, except for essential
uses; and fulfilling New Zealand’s international
obligations for the import, export and use of ozonedepleting substances and the trans-boundary
movement of hazardous waste of international
concern (Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988;
Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996).
The EPA’s 2014/15 Annual Report provides an overview of
the organisation’s activity during the past financial year.
The document measures our performance against our
strategic framework, as set out in our 2014–18 Statement
of Intent, and the specific performance measures in our
2014–15 Statement of Performance Expectations.

reducing New Zealand’s net emissions of
greenhouse gases to below business-as-usual levels
(Climate Change Response Act 2002)
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Report from the Chair
The EPA has a wide range of environmental management
responsibilities, covering emissions trading, hazardous
substances, new organisms, marine consents and
permitted activities in the Exclusive Economic Zone
and Continental Shelf (EEZ), and supporting Boards
of Inquiry considering proposals of national significance
under the Resource Management Act.
Much of our work has a high profile. During 2014/15,
the EPA considered three marine consent applications
in which there was considerable public interest. For
Chatham Rock Phosphate’s marine consent application,
294 submissions were received, 48 parties were heard and
26 days of hearings were held; for OMV’s Maari petroleum
development drilling marine consent application, 155
submissions were received, 17 parties heard and eight days
of hearings held; and for Shell Todd Oil Services’ marine
consent application to allow for ongoing production from
the Maui gas and oil field, 393 submissions were received,
21 parties heard and eight days of hearings held.
The decisions announced for these three applications, as
well as for the nationally significant proposals involving
the Ruakura development plan change, Basin Bridge, Ara
Tūhono-Puhoi to Wellsford Road and Tukituki Catchment,
attracted media commentary.
In comparison, our important work covering the Emissions
Trading Scheme and maintenance of the New Zealand
Emissions Unit Register (NZEUR), hazardous substances,
the trans-boundary shipment and export and import
of hazardous substances, ozone-depleting substances
and persistent organic pollutants tends to have a low
profile and does not attract media attention. In 2014/15,
our work included the initial development of EPA
Notices, a new tertiary instrument that will help us to
consolidate, update and simplify a number of hazardous
substances regulations to align with current international
best practice. This work also included progressing the
New Zealand Emission Trading Register, which will replace
the NZEUR. The new register will improve the usability of
the system and its ability to manage potential security
risks, as well as provide greater flexibility to adapt to future
policy changes.
During the 2014/15 financial year, the Ministry for the
Environment reviewed the effectiveness of the EPA. It
found that in our first three years of operation, the EPA has
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worked positively to deliver its statutory functions within
the legislated timeframes and within budget. The review
commended this result as a significant achievement, given
the variety of responsibilities we have and the high-profile,
often contentious nature of our decisions. The review also
noted that we need to make a step change, from being
an organisation in establishment mode to becoming a
future-focused, mature organisation. We are now focusing
on addressing the recommendations of the review, with
particular emphasis on growing our investment in our
future as a strategic, forward-looking organisation.
All of our work contributes to the Government’s
commitment to building a stronger and more prosperous
New Zealand, and its priorities to:
build a more productive and competitive economy
deliver better public services within tight
fiscal constraints.
We contribute to the economy in a number of ways,
through our work managing the environmental and
health effects of the applications we process, and ensuring
robust environmental and safety standards are in place.
This includes managing hazardous substances applications
for the health of people and the environment as well as
protecting our export industry, while the EEZ application
process contributes to the offshore exploration and mining
sector. Our work also relates to global environmental
challenges that can adversely impact on New Zealand,
such as climate change, by reducing greenhouse gas
emissions and the use of ozone-depleting chemicals.
We are committed to delivering better public services
by taking a joined-up approach to resolving issues
and seeking to achieve a more seamless public service
overall. In anticipation of the new Health and Safety at
Work Act and amendments to the Hazardous Substances
and New Organisms Act 1996, the EPA delegated a range
of workplace-related hazardous substance functions to
WorkSafe New Zealand, to ensure a smooth transition
to the workplace safety regime. During the year, we also
contributed to a joint government response to the 1080
infant formula contamination threat, to help reduce
any risk to human health. We contribute to both policy
and operational discussions across government, and
can offer scientific and technical expertise based on our
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operational experiences, as well as our participation and
connection with the international community in the
specialist areas for which we have responsibility.
During the year, we farewelled our Chief Executive,
Rob Forlong, who had been with us and one of our
predecessor organisations, the Environmental Risk
Management Authority, since 2005. Rob’s hard work and
dedication to the EPA, as well as his leadership and ability
to build and maintain close relationships with staff, were
key to ensuring the successful first four years of the new
organisation. We welcomed Dr Allan Freeth as our new
Chief Executive in September 2015. Allan brings a wealth
of management and government experience to the EPA,
and we look forward to his contribution in coming years.

We thank James Palmer, Deputy Secretary, Sector Strategy,
at the Ministry for the Environment, who acted as our
Chief Executive during the recruitment of the new Chief
Executive. We also farewelled Taria Tahana from the Board
and welcomed two new Board members, Dayle Hunia
and Geoffrey Thompson, who each bring a breadth of
knowledge and experience.
This Annual Report focuses on the EPA’s achievements
and highlights for the year, with a specific focus on our
people and their work. It is through the hard work and
dedication of employees of the EPA that we have built an
organisation that is recognised and respected nationally
and internationally as a highly competent, confident,
assured and trusted environmental regulator.

Kerry Prendergast
Chair
Environmental Protection Authority

Tim Lusk
Chair, Audit and Risk Committee
Environmental Protection Authority

30 October 2015

30 October 2015
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Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao kōrero

E kore e ngaro tō purapura i ruia mai
i Rangiātea
Ko te wehi ki a Ihoa, nāna nei ngā mea katoa.
Ka whakahōnoretia te Kīngi Tuheitia, nāna te
motu i tapa ki te noho i runga i te Ahurewa Tapu
o tōna whaea. Tae noa ki te Kāhui Ariki whānui
tonu, pai mārire.

The seeds that were sown in Rangiātea will
never be lost
Acknowledgements to our Creator, from whom
stems all things.
Humble respects to the King Tuheitia, who was
named by the land to take the place of his mother,
and blessings also on the royal family.

Kei ngā mate huhua o te wā, haere ki a nunui mā,
ki roroa mā. Haere ki te moenga tē whakaarahia.

To the many deceased, we bid you farewell to the
resting place from which you will not arise.

Kei ngā ringa raupā, kei ngā kaitiaki huri noa i te
motu; kei ō koutou waka, ō koutou iwi, ō koutou
hapū, tēnā koutou, tēnā koutou, tēnā tātou katoa.

Sincere greetings to those of you throughout the
country vigorously involved in kaitiaki roles. I also
acknowledge your various tribal connections.

Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao (Ngā Kaihautū) is the statutory
Māori Advisory Committee established to provide
advice and assistance to the EPA on matters relating to
policy, process and decisions. The EPA has a number of
statutory obligations to Māori, both within the EPA Act
by which it was established and within a number of the
environmental Acts and regulations it is responsible for.
Our purpose is to advise the EPA Board and ensure Māori
perspectives are provided effectively and incorporated
into policy, process and decision making. We provide
guidance on the appropriate and effective integration of
Māori perspectives into EPA functions. We do not speak
for individual iwi, hapū or whānau, but rather work to
ensure that systems and process will enable the most
effective outcomes for Māori within the current legislative
framework – essentially as process guardians for Māori.
Ngā Kaihautū encourages the voice of Māori to come
through EPA processes rather than itself being that voice.
Since the development of the He Whetū Mārama
framework, we have turned our minds to what its successful
implementation looks like across the organisation. Ngā
Kaihautū seeks to elevate the importance of mātauranga
Māori so that it is valued alongside Western science
throughout the assessment and decision-making process.
As recognition of our working relationship, we have
endorsed the translation of He Whetū Mārama into te
reo Māori by the Kāhui Kaumatua of the EPA Te Herenga
network in Ōtākou (Otago).

It is important that the EPA has an understanding of Māori
environmental concepts, in order to achieve well-informed
decision making. Kaupapa Kura Taiao, which contributes
to the EPA’s Māori policy and operations, is involved in
the assessment of notified and non-notified applications
and takes into consideration the possible effects for Māori
and the environment. Ngā Kaihautū has identified trends
in application types that pose concern for Māori, such as
aerially applied hazardous substances, and has written a
report to be presented as additional information in the
assessment of relevant applications.
Ngā Kaihautū has begun developing an assessment and
evaluation framework to maximise our effectiveness, and
we are assessing the direct relationship of content in Ngā
Kaihautū reports to decision documents, in particular EEZ
applications. Ngā Kaihautū acknowledges the effort of
submitters and kaitiaki working at the flax roots level.
Mā tini, mā mano, ka rapa te whai.

Tipene Wilson
Tumuaki – Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao
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Our Vision
We will be a world-leading environmental regulator.

Our Mission
To protect people and the environment.

Our Approach

Our Work

We use evidence and science
from New Zealand and overseas.
We provide fair, transparent
and timely service.
We recognise the unique relationship
of Māori to the environment in our
decision-making.

We deliver robust,
objective decisions and
ensure compliance with
rules to protect people
and the environment.

Our Strategic Intentions

Improve the eﬃciency of the
regulatory framework for
hazardous substances.
Maximise confidence in the
integrity and service delivery of
the emissions trading scheme.
Embed the regulation of activities
in the Exclusive Economic Zone
and Continental Shelf.

We work with others to achieve
good outcomes.
We are future focused
and innovative.

Develop improved business
capability through enhanced
EPA systems.

Our People
We develop capable people who work
to achieve our vision.
We share knowledge across the EPA
and respond confidently to change.
We are a great
team.

We learn.
We make a
difference.

We are
professional.

We deliver.

Our Values

We are wellconnected.

We are easy to
deal with.

He Whetū Mārama
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He Whetū Mārama is a framework that guides the Environmental Protection Authority
in the undertaking of its statutory and other obligations to Māori.

Wawata
The unique relationship of Māori to the environment informs EPA decision making.

Mātāpono
He Whetū Mārama is guided by four key Treaty of Waitangi principles.

The principle of active

PROTECTION

The principle of

PARTNERSHIP

requires that the EPA act
reasonably, honourably
and in good faith to
ensure the making of
informed decisions on
matters affecting the
interests of Māori.

requires the EPA to
take positive steps
to ensure that Māori
interests, knowledge,
and experience are
valued in its decision
making and activities.

The principle of

PARTICIPATION

informs the development
of EPA strategy, policy
and process that enables
the effective engagement
and input of Māori.

The principle of

POTENTIAL

recognises that EPA
decision making and
activities have impacts
on the direction for future
growth and development
in a Māori cultural and
economic setting.

Tukunga Iho

INFORMED
DECISION MAKING

PRODUCTIVE
RELATIONSHIPS

EPA policy, process and decision
making is fully and effectively
informed by Māori perspectives.

The EPA maintains relationships
that ensure Māori are productively
involved in its decision making
and associated activities.

• Cultural and Treaty assessment
of applications and proposals.
• Ngā Kaihautū advice and assessment
of the decision-making process
generally and for specific
applications or proposals.
• Decision-maker and staff training
and guidance to support the effective
input of Māori perspectives.
• Operational policy, process and
guidelines that provide for the
effective involvement of Māori.

• Applicant and industry
relationship management
and engagement facilitation.
• Iwi partnership management.
• Te Herenga maintenance
and management.
• Applicant training and guidance.
• Māori training and guidance.
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Part A:

2014/15 YEAR
IN REVIEW
This section outlines how our
work over the past year has
contributed to our Strategy
and intended results.

The year in review
Introduction
The fourth year of operation of the Environmental
Protection Authority (EPA) can be seen as the transitional
year from establishment and set-up to a futurefocused organisation. We achieved a number of key
milestones, made decisions across our functions and
continued to develop our role as New Zealand’s national
environmental regulator.
In July 2014, our revised EPA Strategy and He Whetū
Mārama framework were implemented, after extensive
internal and external consultation relating to our vision,
mission, goals and strategic intentions. Our strategies allow
us to link our day-to-day work with the wider goals of the
EPA, as well as allowing us to see how our work relates to
the Government’s priorities. This section sets out how our
work over the past year has contributed to these goals and
outlines some of our key achievements.

Alignment of our work with
Government priorities
The Government remains committed to building a
stronger and more prosperous New Zealand, by building
a more productive and competitive economy and
delivering better public services within tight fiscal
constraints. In addition, the Minister for the Environment’s
expectation for the EPA was for it to:
assist the Ministry in reviewing the EPA’s effectiveness,
helping to ensure the evaluation is accurate and
comprehensive, and to respond to and implement
the review recommendations
continue to improve compliance with hazardous
substances regulations and help to reduce workplace
harm in the short, medium and long term (specifically
by simplifying the controls, primarily by developing
the new EPA Notices and making a smooth transition
of functions to WorkSafe New Zealand), and continue
to aim to improve hazardous substances education,
compliance and enforcement
work closely with the Ministry in assessing current and
emerging technologies involving new organisms
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implement the regulations in the Exclusive Economic
Zone and Continental Shelf (Environmental Effects)
Act 2012 (EEZ Act) and ensure processes are robust
and cost effective; and develop the ability to ensure
compliance with the EEZ Act and that systems are
in place to make use of the data gained through
monitoring and reporting
continue to build and nurture our relationships with
others, including Māori, stakeholders, industry and
other departments and agencies, and to ensure
environmental management systems are as effective
and efficient as possible
ensure we have the appropriate expertise, systems and
processes in place to ensure our work and decisions are
robust, transparent, and able to be audited and easily
understood by the general public
keep both the Minister for the Environment and
the Minister for Climate Change updated about
the redevelopment of the New Zealand Emission
Unit Register (NZEUR)
take a strategic view across the organisation in
delivering functions within baseline funding and
work with the Ministry to improve the EPA’s financial
planning and forecasting.
The EPA’s revised Strategy and He Whetū Mārama will better
align our work with the Government’s priorities. To achieve
our vision of becoming a world-leading environmental
regulator, we set out four strategic intentions.

Our strategic intentions
Improve the efficiency of the regulatory framework for
hazardous substances
During the 2014/15 financial year, changes to the health
and safety system were progressed via the Health and
Safety Reform Bill, resulting in a new Health and Safety at
Work Act and significant amendments to the Hazardous
Substances and New Organisms Act (HSNO Act). A range
of functions and tasks related to hazardous substances in
the workplace were delegated to WorkSafe NZ, including
the transfer of staff and funding, in September 2014.
WorkSafe NZ will assume full accountability for these
responsibilities once the new legislation comes into effect.

2014/15 Year in Review
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The EPA also gained an enforcement role for hazardous
substances under the HSNO Act amendments. When the
legislative amendments come fully into effect, we will be
responsible for ensuring importers and manufacturers of
hazardous substances have the right approvals for their
substances and follow the rules for labelling, packaging
and safety data sheets.
To make the HSNO Act easier for users of hazardous
substances and enforcement agencies to understand, the
amendments introduce a new tertiary instrument referred
to as EPA Notices. These will help us to consolidate, update
and simplify many requirements in outdated regulations
(such as labelling requirements), and to improve
New Zealand’s alignment with current international best
practice and our trading partners. During the year, we
completed consultation on the first six Notices, with a
further two in progress. The Notices will be issued once
the supporting legislative framework is in place. We expect
that a full transition to the new regime will take three to
four years to complete, as all existing hazardous substance
approvals will need to be reviewed and realigned with the
new EPA Notices.
The EPA has also continued work on our reassessment
programme. This has involved developing a 10-year plan
for reassessing the hazardous substance information in
our databases. During the year, the EPA reassessed all uses
of dichlorvos, as well as the non-plant protection uses of
three organophosphate substances. We also achieved
12 out of 15 output measures for hazardous substances
decision making and compliance for 2014/15.
Maximise confidence in the integrity and service delivery of
the Emissions Trading Scheme
The EPA is responsible for administering the Emissions
Trading Scheme (ETS) and operates the NZEUR for ETSrelated transactions, including emissions unit trading and
reporting activities. In December 2013, the EPA Board
approved a replacement for the NZEUR due to its ageing
technology. The new system is intended to allow close
alignment with the Government’s Result Areas 9 and 10,
as well as taking advantage of all-of-government services
such as RealMe™ and Infrastructure as a Service. The new
system will be called the New Zealand Emission Trading
Register (NZETR), to better reflect the system’s functions.

Once implemented, benefits of the NZETR are expected
to include greater ability to manage future security risks,
improved usability for system users, and greater flexibility
to adapt to policy changes. This flexibility will also enable
new functions to be more easily incorporated into or
integrated with the new system. Monetary benefits will be
realised through lower hosting costs over the life of the
new system, compared with the NZEUR.
During the 2014/15 financial year, the EPA continued
operating the NZEUR to a high standard, enabling
participants to meet their statutory obligations and
recipients to receive their New Zealand unit allocation in
a timely and efficient way. Six audits of major recipients of
an allocation and participating entities under the ETS were
completed, and more than 2,500 activities were registered
under the ETS from businesses in all sectors, including
forestry. A key measure for the group is to ensure that 75
percent of its users trust the integrity and security of the
NZEUR and ETS systems and processes. A survey showed
78 percent of users trusted the systems and processes
in 2014/15, an increase of 12 percent from the previous
year. In addition, the EPA achieved eight out of 10 output
measures relating to this area.
Embed the regulation of activities in the Exclusive Economic
Zone and Continental Shelf
During the year, the EPA delivered decisions for three
notified marine consent applications, as well as processing
two non-notified marine consent applications and
several ruling applications, and monitoring a number of
permitted activities in the Exclusive Economic Zone and
Continental Shelf (EEZ). The EPA continues to attract public
interest in marine consent applications; 393 submissions
were received for the Shell Todd Oil Services’ (STOS) Māui
application, and 21 applicant and submitter experts
presented evidence. In response to this public interest,
the EPA works closely with those involved in the process,
to ensure their views are noted and incorporated at the
same time as ensuring robust, objective decisions are
made. The EPA achieved five out of 10 output measures
relating to EEZ decision making.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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The EPA also developed and improved its compliance
and enforcement role in the EEZ. The EPA is responsible
for monitoring and enforcing compliance with marine
consents, existing structures, permitted activities and
seismic surveys. Physical inspections of all existing
privilege holders have now been completed. Physical
inspections and desktop monitoring of seismic survey
operators and vessels have also taken place. In total,
18 permitted activities, three marine consents and a
number of other activities were monitored for compliance.
To achieve these outcomes, the EPA has focused on
developing staff, including training Enforcement Officers
who are technically competent in regulatory applications.
The EPA achieved all of its output measures relating
to EEZ compliance.
We also focused on developing internal and external
guidance for regulatory processes, and participated in
several forums with other government agencies, industry
and stakeholders. We led the formation of a regular forum
of compliance practitioners regulating the offshore oil
and gas sector, and attended the Advantage New Zealand
Petroleum Summit in Auckland to discuss the way forward
in New Zealand’s EEZ.
Develop improved business capability through improved
business systems
The EPA’s first three years were focused on establishing
the organisation and developing our core services to a
high standard. However, as noted in the Ministry for the
Environment’s review of the EPA, opportunities exist to
develop our business systems to improve our efficiency
and effectiveness in our decision making and day-to-day
work. In response, the EPA has prioritised a number of
initiatives relating to this strategic intention, and these will
continue in the coming years.
A number of business system improvements were made
during the year to create a more effective business
planning model, and to counter fluctuating demand
within the EPA. As a significant proportion of our workload
depends on EEZ and nationally significant proposal
applications, we need to ensure our resources are used
appropriately and in an effective and efficient way. This
has involved implementing a new business planning
framework, as well as developing a new financial

management information system to improve budget
planning and ongoing financial management.
One way to deal with the fluctuating demand for
resources within the EPA is through internal and external
secondments. Over the past year, there were 20 internal
secondments, seven staff participated in external
secondments, and one person was seconded to the EPA
from the Cook Islands Government. These secondments
have given staff valuable direct experience of other
parts of the organisation or similar agencies, while
also giving operational staff the chance to learn about
policy. Experienced staff can also provide subject matter
expert support through their secondments to business
improvement projects, ensuring accurate information
and details of cost pressures are included, and ultimately
improving our decision making. The intranet, our online
system for all staff, has been redeveloped to enable better
communication across the organisation.
The EPA also implements a continuous improvement
and ‘lessons learnt’ framework for our core business.
This includes surveying decision makers, applicants
and staff who process applications, to identify areas for
improvement, and providing debriefs for the Decisionmaking Committees and applicants. The EPA has also
worked closely with the Ministry for the Environment
on cost recovery in the application process, to reduce
costs for applicants and improve efficiency, which further
contributes to improving our business systems.
Looking ahead to the next financial year, the EPA has
a strong focus on improving business systems and
incorporating feedback received during the year.
One key initiative is to produce a Four-Year Plan
document outlining the EPA’s direction for the next
four years through a series of Board-directed strategies
and goals that incorporate the Government’s priorities,
with input from external stakeholders.
The next section provides more detail about specific
achievements of the EPA during the 2014/15 financial year.

2014/15 Year in Review
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Highlights
of the year

What we did –
by the numbers

Emissions Trading Scheme
We implemented the functionality needed to
manage the closing of the New Zealand carbon
market to international units.
The NZEUR and related services continued
to be operated to a high standard, enabling
participants to meet their statutory obligations
and recipients to receive their allocations in a
timely and efficient way.
The International Transaction Log administrator
gave us positive feedback about the high level
of engagement and cooperation it has received
from New Zealand to support the international
carbon market.
We prepared to implement the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change’s
True-Up and Carry-Over process, which
enables New Zealand to meet its obligations
for the first commitment period under the
Kyoto Protocol and recognise its surplus
against its 2013–20 target.

2,550
activities
registered
under the ETS
by businesses,
including forestry

6 major
allocation
recipients and
participating
entities audited

More than

13 million
units surrendered
by ETS forestry
participants

19 million
units surrendered
by non-forestry
participants

Exclusive Economic Zone
We signed a memorandum of understanding
with Maritime New Zealand in October 2014,
setting out expectations for information sharing.
Staff attended the Interspill Conference in
Amsterdam in March 2015 and met with
international regulators about permit processes
for the discharge of hazardous substances.
We led the formation of a regular forum with
Maritime NZ and WorkSafe NZ, for compliance
practitioners regulating the offshore oil and
gas sector.
We released two EEZ compliance education
documents to help people undertaking
permitted activities to achieve compliance with
the EEZ Act and regulations.

5 decisions
released on
marine consent
applications

6 requests
received
for rulings

18
permitted
activities
monitored for
compliance

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Hazardous substances

65 import

We conducted three Hazardous Substances
Classification Workshops for domestic and
overseas applicants, focusing on the process
for assigning or matching substances under
the new EPA Notices.

The EPA
decided 126
hazardous
substance
applications

or export
permits issued
for ozonedepleting
substances

We decided 126 applications relating to
hazardous substances in accordance with Part
5 of the HSNO Act. One involved conducting
a modified reassessment application for
Firebird, a selective herbicide for controlling
broad-leaved and grass weeds in autumnand winter-sown wheat and barley.

254

94 import

status of
substance
enquiries
dealt with

or export
permits issued
for chemicals
and wastes

We put in place additional controls for the
import and storage of 1080.

New organisms
We approved a Hawke’s Bay Regional Council
application to release honeysuckle stemboring beetle, as part of a biological control
programme against the weed Japanese
honeysuckle, in June 2015.

27 new
organism
applications
processed

We approved a Waikato Regional Council
application to release privet lace bug as a
biological control agent for the weed privet.
We approved an application from PacificVet
Ltd under the qualifying organism provisions,
to release a live vaccine for the avian infectious
bronchitis virus.

0

The EPA
answered more than

incidents of adverse
effects from new
organisms caused
by inadequate
controls

270
new organism enquiries
from researchers, industry,
the public, media and
other government
departments

Nationally significant proposals
Boards of Inquiry released final reports and decisions for
the Basin Bridge, Ara Tūhono: Pūhoi to Warkworth Road
and Ruakura development plan change proposals.
The Board of Inquiry appointed to hear the Tukituki
Catchment proposal heard and decided on the matters
referred back to it by the High Court.

4 Board of
Inquiry processes
completed
within statutory
timeframes

2014/15 Year in Review
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Strategic framework
Our mission and our work
Our Strategy and Statement of Intent 2014–18 set out our
mission to protect the environment and keep people
from harm, while ensuring New Zealand can continue to
develop economically, culturally and socially. To achieve
this, our work focuses on delivering robust, objective
decisions relating to environmental matters and ensuring
compliance with the rules. Over the past year, this has
involved making decisions about hazardous substances
and new organisms to ensure the protection of people
and the environment, regulating activities in the EEZ,
managing applications for nationally significant proposals,
and administering the ETS to enable New Zealand to
respond to its climate change obligations.

Measuring success to show
our progress over time
The EPA has identified four long-term impact measures
for “delivering robust, objective decisions relating to
environmental matters and ensuring compliance with the
rules”, which relate to HSNO, EEZ and the ETS. We also have
a number of mid-term impact measures for each of our
strategic intentions, which set out our progress towards
achieving them. Through these measures, we should
be able to demonstrate with increasing reliability the
influence and positive change our work is having on our
overall mission, to protect people and the environment.
The following section updates our progress towards the
measures, noting whether we have achieved them or are
on track to achieve them.

Impact measure 1:Downward trend in the
number of serious harm injuries, fatalities,
chronic health impacts and catastrophic events
resulting from the use of hazardous substances
and new organisms
Target:Downward trend
Result:On track
No hazardous substances categorised as major (Level 4)
or massive (Level 5) were reported to the EPA in 2014/15.
Over the past four years, there has also been a downward
trend for all incidents involving hazardous substances.
During the 2014/15 year, 938 incidents involving
hazardous substances were reported to the EPA, compared
with 1,100 in the previous year. More than 96 percent of
the 938 incidents were categorised as minimal (Level 1).
Since 2010/11, two financial years have had more than
1,400 incidents (2010/11 and 2012/13), but this number
has decreased in the past two financial years.
During the year, 13 incidents were categorised as Level
3 (moderate), compared with 17 in the previous year.
All Level 3 incidents were reviewed by the relevant
monitoring enforcement agency, with a report sent to
the EPA. The majority of incidents resulted from spills
or leakages, and most occurred in workplaces or public
places. The most common substances associated with
the incidents were petrol, diesel and LPG, and almost all
of the incidents were the result of human error and poor
substance handling.
No moderate, major or massive incidents relating to new
organisms were reported to the EPA during 2014/15.
There were 52 minor incidents (Level 2) involving new
organisms, an increase from 31 the previous year. This
year’s incidents included 41 relating to zoo animals.
Appendix 2 defines the categories and provides more
information about incidents involving hazardous
substances and new organisms.
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Impact measure 2:No EPA-approved organism
becomes a pest, weed or disease
Target: Nil
Result:Achieved
A review is conducted annually to check that no EPAapproved organism becomes a pest, weed or disease. This
is the same result as for previous years.
Impact measure 3:No significant adverse
events in the EEZ relating to the marine
consenting regime
Target: Nil
Result: Achieved
Monitoring and inspections of the marine consenting
regime have identified no significant adverse events
in the EEZ.
Impact measure 4:Contribute to the decrease in
New Zealand’s greenhouse gas emissions below
business-as-usual levels through the effective
operation of the ETS
Target: Decrease
Result: On track
Latest data from the Ministry for the Environment shows
New Zealand’s total greenhouse gas emissions decreased
by 1.1 Mt CO2-e (1.4 percent) from 2012/13, while net
emissions decreased by 1.3 Mt CO2-e. New Zealand
remains on target to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
below business-as-usual levels. The EPA continues
to operate the NZEUR and related services to a high
standard by enabling participants to meet their statutory
obligations and recipients to receive their allocations in a
timely and efficient way.

Strategic intention 1:
Improve the efficiency of the
regulatory framework for
hazardous substances
Impact measure 1.1:New rules are in place,
on time and to budget
Target: On track and to budget
Result: Achieved
Under the HSNO Act amendments, the EPA is responsible
for a new tertiary instrument referred to as EPA Notices.
These help us to consolidate, update and simplify many
requirements currently in outdated regulations and
improve their alignment with current international best
practice and our trading partners. During the year, we
completed consultation on the first six Notices, with
another two on track and to budget. These will be issued
once the supporting legislative framework is passed,
which is expected to occur in mid-2016.
Impact measure 1.2:There is a reduction in
the rate of hazardous substance incidents
Target: Decrease
Result: On track
The number of hazardous substance incidents reported
to the EPA can vary from year to year. As noted, there has
been a decreasing trend in the total number of hazardous
substance incidents since 2010/11. Since categories were
introduced in July 2009, there have been no major or
massive events, and the number of moderate incidents
has remained steady over the period.

2014/15 Year in Review
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Impact measure 1.3:There is an increasing
level of consumer awareness of the need
to use hazardous substances correctly
Target: Increasing awareness
Result: On track
During 2014/15, the EPA surveyed approximately 500
participants to establish a baseline of 68 percent for the
level of public awareness of safe handling of hazardous
substances in the home, and to allow targets to be set
for future years. This information can be used to measure
consumer awareness about using hazardous substances
and to assess whether the overall level of awareness
has increased.
Impact measure 1.4:Importers and manufacturers
of hazardous substances are increasingly aware of
their compliance obligations
Target: Increasing awareness
Result: On track
The EPA conducted a number of workshops
in New Zealand and Australia relating to the
implementation of EPA Notices. The workshops were
aimed at consulting with importers and manufacturers
of hazardous substances, and ensuring they were
aware of changes to the HSNO Act. The Notices related
to the hazard classification system; safety data sheets;
packaging; disposal of hazardous substances; and the
requirement for importers and manufacturers to supply
certain information to the EPA. An annual research survey
was not completed during the financial year due to the
timing of the delegation of functions to WorkSafe NZ.

Strategic intention 2:
Maximise confidence in the integrity
and service delivery of the ETS
Impact measure 2.1:The redeveloped register
and business processes are completed on time
and to budget
Target: On time and to budget
Result: Not achieved
Redevelopment of the NZEUR has been held up by delays in
the external supplier’s design and build of the new register.
This means the system will not now be implemented until
2016. The EPA continues to work closely with the external
supplier and to ensure the current register remains fully
maintained and supported, with the full set of functionality
to meet our operational requirements. The project remains
within the approved budget.
Impact measure 2.2:The cost and efficiency
benefits targeted by redevelopment of the
NZEUR and business processes are achieved
Target: Cost and efficiency benefits
Result: On track
As mentioned above, delays to delivery of the new register
have meant a delay in achieving the relevant cost and
efficiency benefits. These will be apparent when the
system has been implemented.
Impact measure 2.3:The output measures
for the administration of the ETS and NZEUR
are achieved.
Target: Measures achieved
Result: Not achieved for 2014/15
Eight out of 10 measures relating to the administration
of the ETS and NZEUR for 2014/15 were achieved.
The performance section has more information
about these output measures.
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Strategic intention 3:
Embed the regulation of activities
in the EEZ
Impact measure 3.1:Regulatory systems and
policies are implemented on time and to budget

Strategic intention 4:
Develop improved business
capability through enhanced
EPA systems

Target: On time and to budget

Impact measure 4.1:Information technology
projects are delivered on time and within budget

Result: Achieved

Target: On time and to budget

Following the set-up and implementation of EEZ functions
for the EPA during the previous financial year, the
regulatory systems and policies are in place and have been
achieved on time and to budget.
Impact measure 3.2:External tests such as
legal, audit or evaluation demonstrate that our
decision making is robust and objective

Result: Not achieved
One information technology project, to update the
intranet, was within budget but not completed until
the beginning of the 2015/16 financial year. The new
financial management information system (FMIS) was
implemented, in addition to a number of upgrades
during the year.

Target: External tests demonstrate our decision
making is robust and objective

Impact measure 4.2:Good information is
available for management decision making

Result: Achieved

Target: Improved information available

A report to the EEZ Board reviewed the processes and
approach used for the three notified marine consent
applications under the EEZ Act (Trans-Tasman Resources,
Chatham Rock Phosphate and OMV New Zealand (Maari)),
and found the decisions were robust and objective. TransTasman Resources withdrew its High Court appeal of the
EPA’s decision to refuse its marine consent application.
There have been no other appeals to the High Court on
points of law.
Impact measure 3.3:No significant adverse
events occur in the EEZ relating to the EPA’s
responsibilities in the regulatory regime
Target: Nil

Result: On track
During 2014/15, the EPA progressed a number of
projects and initiatives to ensure good information is
available for management decision making. This included
implementing a business planning process that sets
out key priorities within the EPA to ensure resources are
used appropriately across the organisation, as well as
developing the FMIS and submitting a Budget Bid for
2015/16. Work also focused on developing a Four-Year
Excellence Horizon, which will contribute to a Four-Year
Plan for the coming years. We have also begun improving
our internal performance management frameworks to
increase the information available about the EPA for our
management team.

Result: Achieved
Monitoring and inspections of the marine consenting
regime have not identified any significant adverse events
in the EEZ.
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Impact measure 4.3:Time and cost savings
can be demonstrated

Impact measure 4.5:Awareness of the EPA’s
role and functions improves

Target: Improved time and cost savings

Target: Increased awareness

Result: On track

Result: Not achieved

A significant amount of work relates to improving
efficiency to produce time and cost savings for the EPA.
It is in response to the Ministry for the Environment’s
review and aimed at improving information availability.
The improved business planning and progress towards
the FMIS, Four-Year Plan and operating model will help
to improve time and cost savings. The EPA has also been
working with the Ministry on cost-recovery practices
for nationally significant proposals and EEZ applicants,
to reduce time and costs associated with the
application process.

The EPA surveyed the general public to find out whether
awareness of the EPA’s roles and functions had improved.
The results showed that 44 percent of the surveyed
population knew the EPA’s role and functions, a slight
decrease from 45 percent in 2013/14.

Impact measure 4.4:Website usability improves
Target: Increased usability
Result: Not achieved
The EPA surveyed the users of its external website during
2014/15 to find out whether its usability had improved.
The following results were recorded:
Site had the information I wanted: 62 percent agreed or
strongly agreed (compared with 67 percent in 2013/14).
It was easy to access information I needed: 51 percent
agreed or strongly agreed (compared with 48 percent
in 2013/14).
Website information was easy to understand: 53 percent
agreed or strongly agreed (compared with 54 percent
in 2013/14).
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Part B:

STATEMENT OF
PERFORMANCE
This section describes the outputs the
EPA is funded to deliver and assesses
delivery against the relevant output
performance measures.
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Statement of performance
for 2014/15
This section summarises the EPA’s performance against the output measures in the Statement of Performance
Expectations 2014–15. For each output expense, we assess whether we have met the target associated with the measure,
and provide an explanation where there is a significant difference between the target and what was achieved.
Costs and revenue for outputs for the year ended 30 June 2015
ACTUAL
2015
$000
COST

ACTUAL
2015
$000
REVENUE

BUDGET
2015
$000
COST

BUDGET
2015
$000
REVENUE

ACTUAL
20141
$000
COST

ACTUAL
20141
$000
REVENUE

Output 1 – Hazardous substance, new
organism, ozone-depleting substance
and hazardous waste decision making

8,496

6,537

6,458

6,458

6,970

7,055

Output 2 – Resource management
decision making

4,141

5,515

7,011

7,011

11,558

12,516

Output 3 – EEZ decision making

7,671

6,954

9,118

9,118

6,409

4,507

Output 4 – Hazardous substance, new
organism, ozone-depleting substance
and hazardous waste compliance

3,770

4,284

4,807

4,807

4,081

3,781

Output 5 – EEZ compliance

1,382

2,339

2,553

2,553

513

347

Output 6 – ETS and NZEUR decision
making and compliance

6,450

6,563

6,404

6,404

6,354

6,453

31,910

32,192

36,351

36,351

35,885

34,659

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT)

282

-

Note 1: The comparative output figures for 2014 have been restated to align with the outputs in 2015.
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Output performance: Vote Environment
Work under Vote Environment relates to the Government’s aim to achieve better solutions to environmental problems
and improve the resource management framework.

Output 1: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozone-depleting
substance and hazardous waste decision making
Our activities under this output relate to assessing and deciding applications and statutory determinations for
hazardous substances and new organisms, in accordance with the Hazardous Substances and New Organisms
Act 1996 (HSNO Act). We issue permits under the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and the Imports
and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004. We are also responsible for issuing import or export
permits for ozone-depleting substances in accordance with the Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996 (OLPA).
Certain activities were transferred to WorkSafe New Zealand during the 2014/15 financial year.

What we delivered
We made decisions on 27 applications and statutory determinations for new organisms in accordance with the HSNO
Act, compared with 20 applications in 2013/14.
We approved the release of two biological control agents, 18 strains of endophyte fungi and one live attenuated vaccine
(not genetically modified new organisms).
We provided 23 instances of non-statutory advice on the status of organisms in New Zealand, and answered more than
270 new-organism enquiries from researchers, industry, media, other government departments and the general public.
We guided stakeholders through the application process, and in doing so raised awareness and improved applicants’
understanding of how to make an application.
We decided 126 applications relating to hazardous substances in accordance with Part 5 of the HSNO Act, compared
with 115 applications in 2013/14.
We issued 65 import or export permits for ozone-depleting substances in accordance with the Ozone Layer
Protection Act 1996, compared with 108 permits in 2013/14.
We issued 94 import or export permits for chemicals and wastes covered by the Stockholm, Rotterdam, Basel and
Waigani Conventions, in accordance with the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and the Import and Exports
(Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004, compared with 66 permits in 2013/14.
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WorkSafe New Zealand
In anticipation of the new Health and Safety at Work Act and amendments to the HSNO Act, the EPA delegated a range
of workplace-related hazardous substance functions to WorkSafe NZ, including transferring staff and funding, from 1
September 2014. This included applications for test certifiers, periodic testers, licences and Part 6 approvals. WorkSafe NZ
reported quarterly to the EPA, in accordance with the terms of the delegation.
During the period under delegation (1 September 2014 to 30 June 2015), WorkSafe NZ:
decided 78 applications to become a test certifier or periodic tester
decided 614 applications for a controlled substance licence
investigated and revoked three controlled substance licences
decided 119 applications for a Part 6 approval (including compliance plans and waivers)
approved four codes of practice
maintained statutory registers for the approvals.
WorkSafe NZ also monitored and supported the independent test certification regime by:
holding a workshop for test certifiers approved for vertebrate poisons and a meeting for invited certifiers, to
strengthen operational relationships and practices
publishing three editions of the Test Certifier Update
reviewing and closing out 23 complaints against test certifiers and one complaint against an approved handler
auditing 25 test certifiers approved to issue location, stationary container, tank wagon and cylinder test certificates
auditing the systems and processes of the New Zealand Underwater delegation
auditing the LPG Association delegation for issuing approved filler test certificates.
WorkSafe NZ improved our understanding of industry compliance by undertaking a national survey of 200 sites (from the
timber treatment, metal processing and horticultural sectors) for compliance with eight key HSNO controls. The study
report will be published in 2015/16.
The Hazardous Substances Information Line responded to more than 3,800 phone and email enquiries. The hazardous
substances website was maintained, and 1,645 ‘toolbox’ packages were distributed to support industry compliance with
the controls. The EPA worked with the Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment to include information about
hazardous substance compliance on the business.govt.nz Compliance Matters website.
Stakeholder engagement was undertaken for the transferred functions, including meetings with industry groups and
presentations to industry conferences.
WorkSafe NZ completed a high-level review of the hazardous substance guidance transferred on 1 September 2014,
to prioritise for future revision after the Health and Safety at Work Bill is passed and the new hazardous substance
regulations come into force.
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PROFILE:

Dr Peter Dawson
Principal Scientist, Hazardous Substances

Peter has wide-ranging experience in the
environmental management of chemicals,
both in New Zealand and internationally.
He gained his PhD in Chemistry at the University of
Otago and completed a post-doctoral Fellowship at
the University of Cambridge. His early work included
industrial chemistry research and development for ICI
New Zealand Ltd. The shift to environmental science
came when he joined the former Department of
Scientific and Industrial Research, moving to ESR on its
formation. He then worked as principal environmental
scientist for Opus International Consultants for four
years, before joining the EPA’s predecessor, ERMA New
Zealand, in 1998 at a time when both the organisation
and HSNO Act were new.
When Peter joined ERMA, he was involved in developing
the policy and operational aspects of the hazardous
substances regulatory regime. This included New
Zealand’s early adoption in 2001 of the then-draft
United Nations Globally Harmonised System for the
Classification and Labelling of Chemicals (GHS), which is
a standard way to classify chemical hazards and describe
them on labels and safety information. It means people
around the world can reliably know what they’re dealing
with and how to safely handle it.

As well as playing a leading role in the development
of New Zealand’s regulatory regime, Peter has
represented New Zealand on the United Nations GHS
Sub-Committee of Experts since 2003, and has worked
to help other countries around the world implement the
GHS, notably in several Southeast Asian countries and
China. He was one of 31 technical experts appointed to
the Stockholm Convention Persistent Organic Pollutants
Review Committee for a term from 2010 to 2014.
Peter says the GHS is the foundation for our
management of chemicals, and has benefits for New
Zealand as well as internationally. “Most of our chemicals
are imported into New Zealand, and we’re not a big
market, so it makes sense for us to adopt international
standards,” he says.
New Zealand’s focus is now on updating everything
to the more recent version adopted by our trading
partners. Peter is currently involved in this, and work to
reform the regulation of hazardous substances. It is work
he is deeply committed to. “I believe in the purpose and
principles of the HSNO Act – in protecting people and
the environment. The whole of modern society is based
on chemistry. People should be able to use and get
the benefits of these products without doing harm to
themselves or the environment,” he says.
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How well we delivered it
Output 1: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozone-depleting substance and hazardous waste
decision making
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

STANDARD 2014/15

ACTUAL 2014/15

STANDARD MET?

ACTUAL 2013/14

Functions not
delegated (EPA)

100%

100%

Yes

100%

Functions delegated
(WorkSafe NZ)

100%

N/D1

No

Functions not
previously
delegated

All audits of HSNO decisions are carried out as per the
agreed programme by 30 June 2015.

100%

100%

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

External tests such as legal, audit or evaluation
demonstrate that our decision making is robust
and objective.

100%

100%

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Submitters on HSNO applications feel their views
have been considered somewhat, quite a lot or fully.

70%

93%

Yes

92%

Submitters on HSNO applications consider the
information and advice provided is clear, helpful
and fit for purpose.

70%

65%

No

59%

HSNO applicants are satisfied with the advice
and support provided.

90%

64%

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Participants in a HSNO hearing process are satisfied
with the support provided.

75%

94%

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

All decisions made
under the HSNO Act and
relevant regulations meet
statutory timeframes.

International work programme, agreed by the
EPA Board, is implemented by 1 July 2015.
Feedback from the chair of the HSNO Committee
indicates it is satisfied with the support provided.2
Annual report to the International Ozone Secretariat,
required by Article 7 of the Montreal Protocol,
is provided to Ministry for the Environment by
30 June 2015.
Resources, legal delegations and operating
arrangements are in place to support smooth
transition of workplace-related functions to
WorkSafe NZ by 1 September 2014.

Note 1: N/D = not determined. Statutory timeframes were not assessed for applications received at the EPA and transferred to WorkSafe NZ.
More information is provided in Appendix 2.
Note 2: Feedback consolidated from the HSNO Committee.
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Phase-out of hydrochlorofluorocarbons (HCFCs)
Under the HSNO Act, the EPA is responsible for issuing
import or export permits for ozone-depleting substances,
in accordance with the Ozone Layer Protection Act
1996 (OLPA). This means the EPA is also responsible for
representing New Zealand at the Montreal Protocol
on Substances that Deplete the Ozone Layer. This is an
international treaty to protect the ozone layer by phasing
out the production of a number of substances that are
responsible for ozone depletion. It came into force in 1989
and currently has 45 signatories and 197 ratifiers, including
New Zealand. As a result of the Protocol, the import levels
for ozone-depleting substances have been periodically
reduced under the OLPA.

Hydrochlorofluorocarbons (HCFCs) are chemicals used as
refrigerants (in refrigerators, freezers and air-conditioning
systems) and in insulative foams, and are ozonedepleting substances. A Phase-out Management Plan
was implemented to phase out the use of HCFCs, and
it was agreed to start reducing HCFC consumption and
production in 2015.
As of 1 January 2015, HCFCs may no longer be imported
under any permits, with the exception of capped
wholesaler permits. The EPA will continue to work with the
ratifiers of the Montreal Protocol to phase out and reduce
use of ozone-depleting substances in the near future.

Output 2: Resource management decision making
Our activities under this output relate to the management of applications, requests or notices that are considered to
have national significance, or other national-level decision-making processes under the Resource Management Act
(RMA) such as notices of requirement for heritage orders.
Applications, requests or notices may be submitted directly to the EPA under section 145 of the Act or called in by the
Minister for the Environment under section 142 of the Act.

What we delivered
We managed four RMA proposals that were considered to be nationally significant. The proposals were submitted
directly to the EPA or called in by the Minister for the Environment.
No new proposals were lodged under section 145 of the RMA in 2014/15. During August and September 2014, three
Boards of Inquiry released final decisions on three applications or requests heard in the 2013/14 year. We also managed
the referral of a matter back to a Board of Inquiry, following the appeal of a 2013/14 decision on a matter called in under
section 142 of the RMA.
Decision making for this output covers supporting Boards of Inquiry in managing public participation through
submissions and hearings, supporting the Board of Inquiry in considering the matters, and releasing decisions.
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How well we delivered it
Output 2: Resource management decision making
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

STANDARD 2014/15

ACTUAL 2014/15

STANDARD MET?

ACTUAL 2013/14

All applications to the EPA are assessed for
national significance and processed within
statutory timeframes.

100%

100%

Yes

100%

All applications to the EPA that are referred
to a Board of Inquiry are processed within
statutory timeframes.

100%

100%

Yes

100%

All consent applications are processed within
15% of the original approved budget.

100%

0%1

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Submitters on RMA applications feel their
views have been considered somewhat, quite
a lot or fully.

70%

N/A (no
applications
received)

N/A

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Submitters on RMA applications consider the
information and advice provided was clear,
helpful and fit for purpose.

70%

N/A (no
applications
received)

N/A

N/A (new
performance
measure)

RMA applicants are satisfied with the advice
and support provided.

90%

N/A (no
applications
received)

N/A

100%

Participants in an RMA hearing
process indicate they are satisfied with
the support provided.

75%

N/A (no
applications
received)

N/A

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Chairs of boards under the RMA or other
national-level decision-making processes in
which the EPA has been involved indicate they
are satisfied with the support provided.

Note 1: The final costs for the Ruakura development plan change and Pūhoi to Warkworth Road proposals were 16 percent and 22 percent,
respectively, above the initial cost estimates, both prepared in 2013. The final costs of the New Zealand Transport Agency’s Basin Bridge
application were 126 percent above the initial cost estimate prepared in 2012, as the result of an extended pre-lodgement and
hearing timeframe.
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Further performance information
Resource management applications and decisions
FORECAST
2014/15

ACTUAL
2014/15

Call-ins and other
ministerial interventions

0

0

1 decision made on a matter referred back to a Board
of Inquiry (2012/13 call-in of Tukituki Catchment
proposal part 1 – Hawkes Bay Regional Council plan
change)

0

Applications of national
significance lodged with EPA

3

0

1 declined and cancelled (2012/13 application for
Basin Bridge)

0

APPLICATION TYPE

IN PROGRESS
30 JUNE 2015

DECISION 2014/15

1 approved (2012/13 request for Ruakura
development plan change)
1 granted and confirmed (2013/14 application for
Pūhoi to Warkworth Road)
TOTAL

3

0

4

0

Note: Decisions on applications are made by independent Boards of Inquiry, not the EPA. Call-ins occur when a Minister calls in a proposal that has
been lodged with a local authority, either referring it to an independent Board of Inquiry or to the Environment Court for consideration and decision.

Ruakura development plan change proposal
Under the RMA, the EPA has responsibilities as part of
the decision-making process for proposals of national
significance. Matters lodged with the EPA may include:
application for a resource consent
application for a change to or cancellation of
resource consent conditions
notice of requirement for a designation or to
alter a designation
notice of requirement for a heritage order
request for a private plan change to a regional
or district council plan
request for preparation of a regional plan (other
than a regional coastal plan).
On 24 June 2013, Tainui Group Holdings Ltd and
Chedworth Properties jointly lodged a private plan
change request with the EPA that proposed to build a
significant logistics, industrial, commercial and residential
development over 389 hectares of a larger 822 hectare

site in Ruakura, three kilometres north-east of Hamilton
City. The proposal was treated as a project of national
significance, and an independent Board of Inquiry was
established to consider the proposed change. It was the
first time for the EPA that an iwi group was the applicant
for a Board of Inquiry process.
The proposed development would cost an estimated
$3.3 billion and take 30 to 50 years to complete. The
applicants estimated the proposal would create more
than 10,000 jobs and contribute $4.4 billion to the
Waikato economy during this time, with limited and
mitigated impact on the environment.
A total of 83 submissions and 21 further submissions
were received on the matter, and a hearing was held
in Hamilton over 23 days in May and June 2014. On 9
September 2014, the Board of Inquiry approved the
plan change request. The first phase of the project, an
80 hectare inland port and freight hub, is planned to be
completed by 2021.
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Output 3: Exclusive Economic Zone decision making
The EPA is part of an integrated regulatory regime for managing activities in New Zealand’s Exclusive Economic Zone and
Continental Shelf (EEZ). The EEZ is the area extending from 12 to 200 nautical miles offshore, while the Continental Shelf
is New Zealand’s submerged landmass, which extends beyond the EEZ in places. The EPA is responsible for managing the
effects of specified restricted activities on the environment in the EEZ and Continental Shelf under the EEZ Act.
For the EEZ decision-making output, the EPA is responsible for processing applications for marine consents, managing
permitted activities, determining rulings for existing operations and raising awareness of the Act.

What we delivered
The EPA processes and makes decisions about applications for marine consents and requests for rulings, while providing
support and advice for EEZ processes and committees. This has included releasing five decisions on marine consent
applications (three publicly notified and two non-notified) and receiving one new marine consent application.
During 2014/15, we also received six requests for rulings and released decisions for four activities relating to
existing structures.
The EPA also worked with oil and gas operators on developing processes for amendments to Discharge Management
Plans for changes in hazardous substances, and for Emergency Spill Response Plans. In March 2015, the EPA attended the
Interspill Conference in Amsterdam and met with international regulators about permit processes for the discharge of
hazardous substances in other jurisdictions.
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PROFILE:

Gemma Couzens
Senior Advisor, EEZ Applications

When Gemma joined the EPA as a Senior
Advisor, EEZ Applications, little did she
know being a qualified rescue diver
would prove useful.
Along with some of the EEZ Decision-making
Committee, Gemma recently visited an offshore oil
rig platform to experience the operating environment
for industries in New Zealand’s EEZ. The visit provided
invaluable context about these operations and was just
one way the EPA is broadening its understanding of how
the new marine consent legislation works in practice.
“And fortunately for me as a diver,” says Gemma,
“the underwater safety training we completed prior
to the visit wasn’t too far outside of my comfort zone.”
The mandatory training can be rough for some, as it
involves replicating a helicopter crash into the sea.
Gemma has specialised in the marine environment
since university. She gained a degree in Marine Biology
and Zoology from Bangor University, then completed a
Master’s degree in Biological Diversity, and followed her
studies with a voluntary position for the International
Union for Conservation of Nature’s Shark Specialist Group.
She spent two years looking at the environmental
impacts of offshore wind farms, then furthered her skills
in interpreting the stringent rules governing offshore

marine activities in a four-year role with a Germanowned energy company where her work involved the
development of environmental impact statements and
applications for offshore wind farms.
Gemma’s arrival in New Zealand in February 2013, just
months before the EEZ Act came into force, was a case
of ‘right place, right time’. Her expertise and knowledge
of comparable overseas legislation proved invaluable
to the newly established team at the EPA.
“Oil and gas extraction are long-established industries
in New Zealand, and this legislation is very new, so it
presents many uncertainties to those captured by it –
not least, whether approval will be granted at the end
of the process,” says Gemma.
Experience working on ‘both sides of the fence’, firstly for
a marine industry operator and developer and now for
a regulator, means Gemma has a clear understanding
of the challenges marine consent applicants face in
interpreting the legislative process for their activities.
“Our job isn’t simply about processing applications,”
she says. “It’s about working with industry to ensure
applications are comprehensive and complete – so
decision makers are given the complete picture from
which to make robust decisions and achieve good
outcomes for New Zealand’s environment.”
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How well we delivered it
Output 3: Exclusive Economic Zone decision making
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

STANDARD 2014/15

ACTUAL 2014/15

STANDARD MET?

ACTUAL 2013/14

100%

100%

Yes

100%

All audits of EEZ decisions are carried out as
per the agreed programme by 30 June 2015.

Achieved

Not achieved1

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

External tests such as legal, audit or evaluation
demonstrate our decision making is robust
and objective.

Achieved

Achieved2

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

100%

0%3

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

EPA participates in, and leads where requested,
appropriate inter-government agency and
stakeholder forums.

Achieved

Achieved4

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Submitters on EEZ applications feel their views
have been considered somewhat, quite a lot
or fully.

70%

65%

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Submitters on EEZ applications consider the
information and advice provided was clear,
helpful and fit for purpose.

70%

44%

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

EEZ applicants are satisfied with the advice
and support provided.

90%

100%

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Participants in an EEZ hearing
process indicate they are satisfied with
the support provided.

75%

58%

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

All decisions made under the EEZ Act
and relevant regulations meet
statutory timeframes.

All consent applications are processed within
15% of the original approved budget.
EEZ Decision-making Committees indicate
they are satisfied with the support provided.

Note 1: The audits of EEZ decisions to be carried out as per the agreed programme in 2014/15 were not completed.
Note 2: A report on the three notified marine consent decisions (Trans-Tasman Resources, Chatham Rock Phosphate and OMV New Zealand Ltd
Maari) was provided to the EPA Board and concluded there was assurance about the process and approaches used.
Note 3: Three notified and two non-notified marine consents came in outside 15 percent of their original cost estimates. One notified marine
consent came in at a cost greater than 15 percent of the original estimate after the overall timeframe was extended by a third. The remaining
four were more than 15 percent under their original cost estimates.
Note 4: The EPA attended the Health, Safety and Environment inter-agency forum, Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment investor
forums and Te Herenga hui.
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Further performance information
EEZ applications

APPLICATION TYPE

FORECAST
2014/15

RECEIVED
2014/15

IN PROGRESS
DURING 2014/15

DECISION
30 JUNE 2015

Notified marine consent

1

1

2

(STOS1 Māui)

(CRP1 and
OMV1 Maari)

3 decisions
made on notified
consents
(CRP, OMV Maari
and STOS Māui)

Non-notified marine consent

0

0

3
(OMV Whio, STOS
Maui 8/Ruru 2
and AWE1 Oi 2
(withdrawn)

2 decisions made
on non-notified
consents
(OMV Whio, STOS
Maui 8/Ruru 2)

Note 1: STOS = Shell Todd Oil Services; CRP = Chatham Rock Phosphate; OMV = OMV New Zealand; AWE = Australian Worldwide Exploration.

OMV Maari application
The EPA forms part of an integrated regulatory regime
for managing activities in New Zealand’s EEZ. We are
responsible for regulating the effects of certain restricted
activities on the environment and existing interests
under the EEZ Act, with the purpose of promoting the
sustainable management of the natural resources of
this area. Our role includes considering applications
for marine consents and monitoring compliance
with the Act.
In June 2014, OMV New Zealand Ltd (OMV) lodged
an application for a marine consent to complete its
development drilling programme in the Maari field within
the Taranaki Basin, approximately 80 kilometres offshore
from Opunake. The consent will allow OMV to continue
to drill up to seven development wells within existing
conductor slots and to carry out associated activities in the
Maari oil field.

Maari is the largest crude oil field in New Zealand,
with total reserves of 51 million barrels. OMV began oil
production in February 2009 and now uses a combination
of production and water-injection wells.
The application was considered by a Decision-making
Committee appointed by the EPA Board and chaired by
Alick Shaw, and on 18 December 2014 the Committee
granted OMV the marine consent. The consent is subject
to 33 conditions that will be monitored and enforced by
the EPA. The Committee noted that the overall effect of the
development drilling programme on the environment was
minor, and in many cases the effects were temporary.
EPA Board Chair Kerry Prendergast thanked the Committee
for its assessment of the application, saying, “We appreciate
the high level of expertise the Committee brought to
considering the potential effects of the application
on the environment.”
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Output 4: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozone-depleting
substance and hazardous waste compliance
Our activities under this output relate to coordinating and facilitating compliance under the HSNO Act, the OLPA, the
Import and Export (Restrictions) Act 1988, and the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004,
jointly with other agencies. Certain activities were transferred to WorkSafe NZ during 2014/15.

What we delivered
We coordinated and assisted with compliance with hazardous substance approvals under the relevant Acts.
We monitored and assisted with compliance with new organism approvals, and developed and maintained policies and
procedures relating to new organism compliance.
We worked with territorial authorities to ensure compliance with the requirements of the OLPA, and carried out
investigations into alleged releases of controlled substances.

How well we delivered it
Output 4: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozone-depleting substance and
hazardous waste compliance
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

STANDARD 2014/15

ACTUAL 2014/15

STANDARD MET?

ACTUAL 2013/14

Report to the Minister by 31 December 2014 on the
compliance and enforcement activities carried out by
HSNO enforcement agencies.

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Establish a baseline for the level of public awareness of
safe handling of hazardous substances in the home, to
allow the setting of targets for 2015/16.

Achieved

Achieved1

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Systems, processes and resources are in place by
1 April 2015 to undertake the new function of
compliance obligations on hazardous substance
importers and manufacturers.

Achieved

Achieved2

N/A

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Core EPA Notices covering the hazardous substance
classification system, packaging, labelling, safety data
sheets and enforcement officer qualifications are in
place by the date the Health and Safety Reform Act
comes into effect (now expected in 2016).

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

No escape of a new organism from containment occurs
when approval holders comply with approval controls.

Nil

Nil

Yes

Nil

All central government enforcement agencies regard
the annual HSNO Act compliance activities and
intentions report as fair and accurate, and consider
they had an acceptable opportunity to have input into
the process and report.3

100%

100%

Yes

100%

Note 1: A baseline of 68 percent was established for the level of public awareness of safe handling of hazardous substances in the home.
Note 2: The systems, processes and resources are in place and waiting for the legislation to come into effect in July 2016.
Note 3: Measure not included in the 2014–15 Statement of Performance Expectations.
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Compliance and enforcement by the EPA
In the EEZ area, there has been a significant focus on
developing our people and intelligence capability to
become a leader in this area. This has included training
staff as enforcement officers who are technically
competent across a range of the EPA’s regulated activities
and understand the regulatory requirements.
The EPA has an active role in monitoring and enforcing
compliance with marine consents, existing structures,
permitted activities and seismic surveys under the EEZ
Act. This often involves visiting oil rigs to ensure they are
complying with the Act. During the past year, the EPA
inspected four petroleum well sites and three seismic
survey vessels, as well as monitoring the compliance of 18
permitted activities. Before these inspections occur, the
relevant staff must have the required health and safety
training for visiting an offshore oil rig.
One example of this safety training involved EPA staff and
members of the Decision-making Committee for the Shell
Todd Oil Services (STOS) application for continued offshore
activities associated with the Māui natural gas field off the
Taranaki coast. To ensure their safety, the committee and

staff underwent full medical examinations and carried out
basic offshore safety induction emergency training prior to
the visit. As part of their training, the team learned survival
techniques, including how to escape from an upsidedown submerged helicopter.

EPA hazardous substances poster wins award in San Francisco
During 2014/15, an EPA poster showing safety information
for hazardous substances placed first equal at an
international conference in San Francisco, selected
from more than 800 posters submitted.
Two EPA staff members attended the International Union
of Pure and Applied Chemistry Congress of Pesticide
Chemistry in San Francisco in September 2015, where
they presented the safety poster.
The EPA worked in partnership with key players in the
agrichemical industry, rural supply stores and WorkSafe
NZ to develop and disseminate the safety campaign
presented in the poster.
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Output 5: Exclusive Economic Zone compliance
Under this output, the EPA is responsible for monitoring and enforcing compliance with the requirements of permitted
activities regulations and any conditions of marine consents under the EEZ Act. Specifically, the EPA is responsible for
monitoring and enforcing compliance for marine consents, existing structures, permitted activities and seismic surveys.

What we delivered
The EPA developed and implemented an annual monitoring, compliance and enforcement programme, and promoted
public awareness of the Act’s requirements. The EPA also engaged with consent holders and stakeholders to ensure they
were aware of their obligations.
During 2014/15, the EPA inspected four petroleum well sites, three seismic vessels, four existing structures and 18
permitted activities.
The EPA also released two EEZ compliance and education documents to help people undertaking permitted activities
in the EEZ to achieve compliance with the Act and regulations. The EPA also led the formation of a regular forum of
compliance practitioners that regulate the offshore oil and gas sector.

How well we delivered it
Output 5: Exclusive Economic Zone compliance
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

STANDARD 2014/15

ACTUAL 2014/15

STANDARD MET?

ACTUAL 2013/14

The monitoring, compliance and enforcement
programme is approved by the Board by
30 December 2014 and implemented in
accordance with the Act by 30 June 2015.

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

Achieved

All consents (or deemed consents) and rulings
are monitored for compliance.

100%

Achieved

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

All reported permitted activities are monitored
for compliance with notification and
reporting requirements.

100%

Achieved

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Yes

Achieved
July 2015

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Compliance targets for 2015/16 are set from
monitoring information received.
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PROFILE:

Bevan Hunter
Senior Advisor, Kaupapa Kura Taiao

Bevan says he feels privileged in his role,
communicating the EPA’s sometimes
controversial applications to Māori,
and Māori views to decision makers.
“Engaging with lots of iwi enables me to pick up
mātauranga (knowledge) that wouldn’t normally be
available to me. It’s a privilege!” he says.
Bevan has always valued knowledge. He has a diverse
background that encompasses business and science,
and traditional and contemporary knowledge. He grew
up on ancestral Māori land in the Coromandel, learning
mātauranga Māori from his grandfather and observing
changes over time in the surrounding environment with
growing interest.
He was awarded a scholarship from Te Ohu Kaimoana,
which he used to obtain a degree in Applied Science
from the University of Tasmania, where he majored
in aquaculture. After qualifying, Bevan managed
the family pāua farm and concurrently operated a
consultancy business. He learnt valuable lessons
about trying to run two businesses single-handedly on
ancestral land and feels fortunate to enjoy the benefits
of being strongly grounded in two cultures.
He went to work for the Ministry of Fisheries, then to
the Crown Forestry Rental Trust, and worked on the first
Statistics New Zealand Māori social survey (Te Kupenga).

This diverse background of science, business and Māori
relationships has proved very useful for his role with the
EPA, which involves communicating with communities
around the country about anything from herbicides to
offshore oil exploration.
It’s not always easy being the messenger, but the
work, Bevan feels, is important. “If you’re not in there,
you feel like you’re not participating,” he says. The
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act has
some distinctive and specific provisions about the
incorporation of Māori views in decision making.
The EPA’s statutory Māori advisory board, Ngā Kaihautū
Tikanga Taiao, also plays a unique role in environmental
management in New Zealand. “We’re here to make
sure a Māori world view gets incorporated into the
information received by our decision makers.
“I’m still learning, of course, and will continue to do so,”
Bevan says. “The scientific, ethical, environmental and
cultural questions involved in the work pose challenges
for Māori, decision makers and for everyone involved in
environmental management.
“I’m on the governance board of my iwi, Te Runanga
o Ngāti Porou ki Hauraki, so it’s easy for me to look
at things with an open mind from a business as
well as environmental and te ao wairua (the spiritual
world) perspective. At times I’m grateful I’m not the
decision maker.”
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Output 6: ETS and NZEUR decision making and compliance
This is the EPA’s only output under the output class Climate Change Response Administration. Our primary activity
under this output relates to the implementation and operation of the Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS) and New Zealand
Emission Unit Register (NZEUR). This includes administering non-forestry allocation, entitlements and obligations, and
the synthetic greenhouse gas provisions under the Climate Change Response Act 2002; and providing the services and
facility for, and information about, the transfer and holding of units. We are also responsible for making decisions on
Emissions Rulings, Unique Emissions Factors and Unique Emissions Factors Verifiers.

What we delivered
In 2014/15, the EPA continued to operate the NZEUR and related services to a high standard, enabling participants to
meet their statutory obligations and recipients to receive their allocations in a timely and efficient way. A significant
milestone was implementing the functionality to manage the closing of the New Zealand carbon market to
international units.
Output 6: Financial output
ACTUAL 2014/15

BUDGET 2014/15

VARIANCE

ACTUAL 2013/14

6,092

6,392

(300)

6,392

-

-

-

-

471

12

459

61

Total revenue

6,563

6,404

159

6,453

Expenses

6,450

6,404

(46)

6,354

113

-

113

99

Crown funding (Vote Environment:
Non-departmental output expenses –
Emissions Trading Scheme)1
Fees and charges
Other revenue

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

Note 1: The Crown funding received by the EPA equals the actual expenses incurred in relation to the appropriation, which is a required
disclosure from the Public Finance Act. The initial funding approved in the Main Estimates was $6,392,000, reduced in Supplementary
Estimates to $6,092,000.
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PROFILE:

Janine Manhart
Senior Analyst, Emissions Trading Scheme

Janine is the voice for the person who has to
complete a batch of mandatory paperwork
for the Government.
Having to spend your time filling in forms just for
the Government’s benefit is bad enough, but it can
be infuriating if the systems are unclear or poorly
designed. Janine’s job is to make sure the Emissions
Trading Scheme (ETS) forms and processes work well
for the people who use them.
Janine joined the Ministry for Economic Development
in 2010, where the New Zealand Emission Unit Register
(NZEUR) was being managed, working on information
technology releases and upgrades. That team and a
team of staff from the Ministry for the Environment
were merged as part of the EPA in December 2011.
Shortly after, Janine became part of a newly formed
dedicated business improvement team. Her first
work at the EPA involved implementing an internal
control system and a business assurance framework.
She also had a major role in redesigning and simplifying
every paper-based form and guide relating to the ETS
processes associated with the NZEUR.
Conscious of the Government’s drive to improve online
information and processes for people and businesses,

and with the current register foreseeably nearing
the end of its life, the EPA decided the system
should be redeveloped. Janine’s job is to make
sure customers have a say in how it is built and
that it is usable for both staff and customers.
The work began with a prolonged period of
customer research, starting with visits to a number
of companies that were mandatory participants in
the ETS. That’s how Janine and a colleague found
themselves standing in a dusty portable cabin
in a quarry near Rotorua one day. The woman
who singlehandedly ran the enterprise juggled
customer enquiries, production crises and Janine’s
questions about the NZEUR simultaneously.
“That was really seeing the face of what our
customers were coping with,” says Janine. “Some
of our visits were to corporate offices, but they all
brought home to us what each company had to
do to meet the requirements we put on them.”
A lot more work with customers has followed
those business visits, as the design of the new
system takes place. “We want the new system to
be usable for everyone, the content to be right
and the right help to be there for people when
they need it.”
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How well we delivered it
Output 6: ETS and NZEUR decision making and compliance
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

STANDARD 2014/15

ACTUAL 2014/15

STANDARD MET?

ACTUAL 2013/14

Applications for industrial allocations are
processed accurately within four weeks of
receiving the signed application summary.1

95%2

100%

Yes

100%

Compliant applications for Unique Emissions
Factors are processed accurately
and in time for participants to meet their
statutory obligations.

100%

100%

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Participant registrations and account
applications are accurately recorded in the
NZEUR within two business days of receipt
of a properly completed application.1

98%

98%

Yes

98%

Statutory reporting is completed according
to agreed timeframes.

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Users are satisfied with the overall quality of
ETS service delivery.

75%

73%

No

69%

Achieved

Not achieved3

No

Achieved

Core NZEUR services are available for use in
New Zealand business hours 99% of the time,
excluding scheduled outages.

99%

100%

Yes

99%

Crown directions relating to emission unit
transfers are carried out accurately and within
two business days of receipt of a properly
completed direction.

98%

98%

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Nil

Nil

Yes

N/A (new
performance
measure)

75%

78%

Yes

66%

ETS AND NZEUR SERVICE MEASURES

ETS AND NZEUR INTEGRITY MEASURES
Audits of industrial allocation recipients and
participating entities under the ETS are carried
out according to the agreed audit programme.

There are no discrepant transactions
in the NZEUR.
Users trust the integrity and security
of the NZEUR and ETS systems and processes.

Note 1: Output measure reported against the Vote Environment ETS appropriation.
Note 2: As outlined in the 2014–15 Statement of Performance Expectations, the 2014/15 standard was 95%, while in the Vote Environment
Estimations of Appropriation 2014/15 the standard was 90%.
Note 3: The ETS compliance programme requires the EPA to conduct two types of review for a sample of entities engaging with the ETS – reviews
by third party contractors (external reviews) and reviews by ETS group staff (desktop reviews). For the 2014/15 year, all external reviews were
completed, but the desktop reviews were not completed until early August 2015.
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In addition to the range of performance measures for each output, the EPA has a series of service-level targets for the
organisation’s overall performance. These targets are measured through surveys and similar qualitative techniques. The
table below includes service-level targets that do not relate to a specific area and cover the wider organisation.

How well we delivered it
Service-level targets
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

STANDARD 2014/15

ACTUAL 2014/15

STANDARD MET?

ACTUAL 2013/14

People surveyed find EPA information
easy to access.

70%

61%

No

60%

People surveyed find EPA information
easy to understand.

70%

53%

No

61%

People surveyed say it is reasonably easy
or very easy to contact EPA.

70%

71%

Yes

73%

Māori surveyed say they have had reasonable
opportunities to participate in EPA functions.

80%

63%

No

N/A (new
performance
measure)

Māori surveyed rate the information provided
by EPA as relevant or very relevant.

80%

100%

Yes

100%

All responses to ministerial correspondence
and parliamentary questions are completed
within five working days (or as otherwise
agreed) and to the satisfaction of the
Ministry for the Environment.

100%

100%

Yes

100%

The Ministry for the Environment is satisfied
with the timeliness and quality of EPA advice
and input into government policy activities.

Achieved

Achieved

Yes

Achieved
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Part C:

THE
ORGANISATION
AND ITS
CAPABILITY
This section outlines how the
organisation is governed and how
we are developing our capability.

Governance
The EPA comprises the Board and staff. The EPA reports
to the Minister for the Environment and to the Minister
for Climate Change on issues relevant to their
respective portfolios.
The EPA Board has between six and eight members
appointed by the Minister for the Environment. The Board
is responsible for the governance of the organisation,
including setting strategic direction and monitoring
performance. It is also responsible for the statutory
functions set out in legislation, some of which are
delegated to Board committees or the Chief Executive.
The Board usually meets monthly to carry out governance
functions and deal with major issues. Out-of-session
decisions are made as required. The Board has delegated a
range of powers to committees.

Members of the EPA Board

41

Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao
Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao (Ngā Kaihautū) has up to
eight members who are appointed by the Board under
Part 2 of the EPA Act 2011. Their purpose is to provide
the Board with advice on policy, process and decision
making by the EPA. This enables them to ensure the
organisation’s processes are appropriate for achieving
effective Māori participation.

Members of Ngā Kaihautū
Tikanga Taiao
Steven (Tīpene) Wilson, Tumuaki (Chair), Ngāti Koroki
Kahukura, Ngāti Apakura, Ngāti Tura and Ngāti Te Ngākau
Ngaire Burley, Tumuaki Tuarua (Deputy Chair), Tapuika,
Ngāti Moko, Ngāti Marukukere and Ngāti Kurī

Kerry Prendergast (Chair)

James (Jim) Doherty, Ngāti Tāwhaki, Ngāti Kahungunu,
Ngāti Ruāpani, Ngāti Awa, Ngāti Hokopū and Ngāi Tūhoe

Dr Kevin Thompson (Deputy Chair)

Marino Tahi, Ngāi Tūhoe

Tim Lusk

Kelly May, Ngāti Kahungunu and Ngāti Marangatūhetaua

Taria Tahana (Ngāti Pikiao, Ngāti Mākino and Tapuika)
(until 30 June 2015)

James Whetu, Waikato, Ngāti Raukawa, Ngāti Tūwharetoa
and Ngāti Whakaue

Gillian Wratt

Maree Haupai Puke, Waikato, Maniapoto, Ngāti Porou
and Ngāti Whakaue

Dr Nicki Crauford
Kura Denness (Te Atiawa)
Dayle Hunia (Ngāti Awa) (from 1 July 2015)
Geoffrey Thompson (from 1 July 2015)

Statutory committees
The EPA is supported by two statutory committees: the
Māori Advisory Committee Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao and
the Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee.

Hazardous Substances and New
Organisms Committee
The EPA Board appoints a Hazardous Substances and New
Organisms (HSNO) Committee under the Crown Entities
Act 2004. This committee currently consists of eight
members and is chaired by the Deputy Chair, Dr Kevin
Thompson. The committee hears and decides applications
made under the HSNO Act, except for some decisions
that are non-notified or required to be made rapidly (in
less than 10 days). The EPA Board has delegated decisionmaking powers for certain low-risk decisions to staff
members and third parties. The EPA Board can review and
remove these delegations if it has any cause for concern.

The Organisation and Its Capability
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Members of the
Hazardous Substances and
New Organisms Committee

Exclusive Economic Zone
Decision-making Committees

Dr Louise Malone

The EPA makes decisions for marine consents under
the Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf
(Environmental Effects) Act 2012 (EEZ Act) through
delegated Decision-making Committees (which must
include at least one EPA Board member). Other decisions
under the EEZ Act are delegated by the EPA Board to the
Chief Executive and EPA staff, where appropriate.

Dr Deborah Read

Resource Management Act Boards of Inquiry

Damian Stone, LLB (Ngāti Kahungunu) (until 30 June 2015)

Boards of Inquiry are not part of the EPA. They are
appointed by the Minister for the Environment and make
decisions on nationally significant proposals. Over the
years, these have included major roading projects, a prison,
a fish farm and the redevelopment of a major city area.

Dr Kevin Thompson (Chair)
Helen Atkins LLB
Dr Kerry Laing

Dr John Taylor
Dr Nicholas (Nick) Roskruge
Dr Ngaire Phillips (from 1 July 2015)

Board committees
The Board has appointed two standing committees to
assist it in carrying out its governance responsibilities:
the Audit and Risk Committee, which oversees
the accountability processes and financial and
organisational risk matters
the Performance Review and Remuneration Committee,
which monitors the Chief Executive’s performance and
approves salaries for senior staff members.

Staff

A Board of Inquiry must have between three and five
members, with the chair a current, former or retired
Environment Court judge or a retired High Court judge.
The Minister has responsibility for deciding whether a
matter is nationally significant and, if so, how it should be
considered, either by a Board of Inquiry, the Environment
Court or by being referred to the local authority for the
decision-making process. The Board of Inquiry must
produce a final decision and report within nine calendar
months (less the period between 20 December and
15 January), although the Minister may grant a time
extension if required.

Staff members of the EPA support the Board in carrying
out its statutory functions and are responsible for
delegated decision making in a number of areas.
The organisation is structured into six groups, each
of which is led by a general manager:
Applications and Assessment
Compliance
Corporate Services
Emissions Trading Scheme
Kaupapa Kura Taiao
Policy and Legal.
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Developing organisational
capability

Learning and development

During the 2014/15 year, the focus for developing
organisational capability has been on ensuring greater
alignment with the EPA Strategy.

The high level of secondments continues to be a key
strategy for building skills, knowledge and experience, as
well as managing resources across the EPA. As at 30 June
2015, secondments allowed the organisation to effectively
utilise its workforce, with 54 staff using secondments as
part of their development. The culture of the EPA also
benefits from this cross-organisational approach.

An overarching People Strategy has been developed
to link the Strategy and the annual Human Resources
Organisational Development Plan, and is supported by
the development of a Four-Year Excellence Horizon People
Strategy needs analysis and supporting work programme.

Secondments

Leadership and management development

The EPA has continued to consolidate gains from initiatives
undertaken in earlier years as well as new initiatives.

Operational Leadership Team (OLT) development

In response to the results of the employee satisfaction
survey, staff and managers have been involved in
developing a set of initiatives to work on.

The OLT group continues monthly structured formal
operational meetings, and trialled fortnightly forums to
which group members could bring key operational issues
for deeper discussion.

As part of developing our people and improving
the professionalism of the EPA regulatory capability,
the Enforcement and Compliance business unit is
implementing a detailed learning and development
programme. It will enable EPA enforcement officer
warranting, and warranting for officers from other agencies
such as WorkSafe New Zealand and Maritime New Zealand.
The programme will also serve as a format for developing
other technical learning and development programmes
required by the EPA, such as Hazardous Substances (HS)
and the ETS (group ETS members are already participating
in aspects of the programme).
The EPA continues to play an active role within the
Compliance Common Capability Programme (CCCP)
to ensure best-practice compliance standards and
qualifications across New Zealand’s regulatory
organisations. Andrea Eng, General Manager Enforcement
and Compliance, sits on the CCCP Governance Board and
Ray McMillan, Manager Hazardous Substance Enforcement
and Compliance, is on the Regulatory Compliance
Learning Council (RCLC).

Continued engagement and planning has occurred
around leadership and management development with
the Natural Resources Group and Regulators Learning
and Development Community. The EPA is working on
entry into a wider choice of common leadership and
management programmes and further developing our
place in the regulatory communities. Early discussions
have occurred with WorkSafe NZ and Maritime NZ
learning and development staff, with a view to building a
Regulatory Group leadership development programme in
the next year.
Executive Leadership Team (ELT) development
Development for the Executive Team continues to occur
both at an individual and collective level.

On-boarding / Induction
To enable all staff to become effective and efficient in
their role as quickly as possible, it is essential that all staff
new to the EPA, or the role, receive a timely induction.
A project targeting the efficiency and effectiveness of
the EPA’s on-boarding processes is at final reporting
stage about the changes required to HR and other
corporate systems and processes.
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Measuring our progress
We have been monitoring our progress towards key capability targets during the year, as follows:
TARGET

ACHIEVEMENT

Staff development and performance plans will be in place
and reviewed regularly.

The performance plan template continues to be
reviewed and updated to ensure it supports delivery of
the organisation’s objectives and the performance and
growth of employees.

Individual training needs will be assessed and programmes
put in place.

Individual training needs were identified from
performance plans and discussions with managers and
employees. A number of courses were run in-house,
including plain English writing, project essentials, ‘How
Government Works’, Workwise, relationship building and
coaching. External coaching opportunities were available
for individual staff. Some staff members attended external
courses, lunchtime and evening seminars and domestic
conferences. Staff members who received the EPA’s
professional development award attended an overseas
conference as part of their learning and development.

Leadership training initiatives will be in place.

The third-tier management group meets regularly and
has continued its development through a programme of
in-house educational sessions. Both the HR and financial
delegations have been reviewed and a number delegated
to third-tier management. Some staff attended leadership
training courses run by the government Natural
Resources Sector. These include Aspiring Leaders for staff
showing interest in leadership roles, Professional Specialist
Leadership for staff providing technical or professional
specialist advice and thought leadership, and the
Building Capable Managers programme for staff looking
to learn about people management and leadership at
a management level.

External salary comparisons will be conducted regularly
and adjustments made as required.

The Hay Group has provided information about market
movement over the past 12 months and conducted job
evaluations to make sure the EPA can retain market parity.
Information on market movement is also gathered from
other remuneration data providers.
Adjustments are made to the salary bands annually in line
with market movement.

Recruitment activity, trends and time to fill vacancies
will be monitored and reported.

Recruitment activity is tracked and reported to the ELT
on a weekly basis. More in-depth figures are provided to
third-tier management and the ELT on a quarterly basis as
part of an HR metrics report.

Responses to entry and exit surveys will be reviewed,
and recommendations for improvements implemented
where feasible.

All staff entering the organisation are provided with
induction surveys after two and eight weeks. All staff
leaving the EPA have the opportunity to complete
an exit survey.
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Good employer obligations
The EPA recognises the importance of having a range of measures that have been identified as key markers of a good
employer. We have collected data for these measures during the year and used them for a benchmarking exercise, reporting
to the Human Rights Commission and to improve our performance. Obligations are monitored in the following areas:
leadership, accountability and culture
recruitment, selection and induction
employee development and promotion, and exit processes
flexibility and work design
remuneration, recognition and conditions
prevention of harassment and bullying
maintaining a safe and healthy environment.
GOOD EMPLOYER OBLIGATIONS

RESULT

LEADERSHIP, ACCOUNTABILITY AND CULTURE
Ensure the vision developed for the organisation articulates The EPA’s vision to be a world-leading environmental
our commitment to equality and diversity.
regulator is supported by organisational policies and
processes (Code of Conduct and Recruitment) that
articulate our commitment to equality and diversity.
Encourage the development of a culture that is supportive
and equitable for all staff.

The leadership team has worked closely with staff
to ensure the EPA’s values are part of the
organisation’s culture.
Outstanding contributions to work deliverables and
the demonstration of EPA values are acknowledged
and an award given at the monthly staff meeting. The
EPA acknowledges the importance of regular reviews
of its programmes, and the annual workplace survey
provides feedback from staff that is used to build the
organisational culture in response to the changing
demographics and workforce.

Encourage the development of a learning culture that
will enhance the EPA’s performance while supporting the
aspirations of staff.

There is a commitment to staff learning that encompasses
secondments and management opportunities, as well as
formal, informal and on-the-job learning.
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GOOD EMPLOYER OBLIGATIONS

RESULT

RECRUITMENT, SELECTION AND INDUCTION
Ensure the continued use of robust and transparent
recruitment and selection processes.

The management of recruitment by our HR specialists
uses transparent hiring processes to ensure not only that
legislative requirements are met, but the best people are
selected for the right position at the appropriate time.

Use innovative channels to attract diverse applicants.

We recognise the importance of understanding,
attracting and valuing a diverse workforce. We use a range
of channels to attract candidates, including recruitment
websites (such as LinkedIn), international agencies and
journals, and domestic newspapers. We continue to
consider new ways to connect with our target audiences.

Monitor candidate and workforce demographics in relation
to age, ethnicity, gender and disability.

The EPA recognises the importance of having equal
employment policies in place to eliminate barriers to
employment. Information is collected relating to staff
demographics and reports are delivered to management
on a regular basis.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT, PROMOTION AND EXIT PROCESSES
The EPA will provide equal access to personal development Each staff member has a performance plan and is
and activities that may lead to promotion.
encouraged to take up opportunities for advancement or
personal development. Career progression and secondment
guidelines have been issued, along with holding in-house
workshops, to support staff and managers.
Our performance management practices will be
transparent and fair.

Staff are assessed against objectives and competencies
that are agreed and signed off at the beginning of the
year, or as changes occur. Performance plans are reviewed
with staff at regular catch-up sessions with managers
throughout the year. A review of their performance is
conducted annually.

Staff will have the opportunity to complete a confidential
exit survey.

All staff leaving the EPA are offered the opportunity
to complete a confidential exit survey, either online
or in person. Themes from the survey are fed back
to the HR Manager.

FLEXIBILITY AND WORK DESIGN
Work towards an organisation-wide flexible work
programme to recognise the needs of parents
and other caregivers.

Managers engage with individual staff about their wellbeing. Support for individual needs can include working
flexible hours, part-time or from home.

Provide facilities for the use of parents.

A private room is available for parents.

REMUNERATION, RECOGNITION AND CONDITIONS
Continue to provide transparent, equitable and genderneutral job evaluation processes.

Our job evaluation processes include a regular review
of job descriptions, job ‘bands’ and remuneration levels,
to ensure transparent, equitable and gender-neutral job
evaluation processes.

The remuneration system will be reviewed regularly.

The remuneration system is reviewed on a regular basis,
with trends monitored throughout the year and key
data sets reviewed as part of the end-of-year
remuneration process.
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GOOD EMPLOYER OBLIGATIONS

RESULT

PREVENTION OF HARASSMENT AND BULLYING
Relevant policies and the code of conduct will be
promoted to staff.

We recognise it is critical to review and articulate key
policies and practices for all staff. We do this through
online policy training modules, presentations at monthly
staff meetings and intranet updates. All new staff must
read the code of conduct as part of their induction, and
confirm in writing that they have read it.

Managers and staff are trained in their responsibilities.

All new staff members are provided with targeted online
pre-induction modules and face-to-face induction
training, to ensure they know their responsibilities. Within
one to two months of joining, they also participate in a
corporate induction outlining what each organisational
group does.

The leadership team ensures there is zero tolerance of
harassment and bullying.

The EPA has zero tolerance to bullying and, if identified,
it would be dealt with promptly and in an appropriate
manner. Harassment and bullying information is included
in our Employment Relations policy.

SAFE AND HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT
Create an environment that supports employee
participation in health and safety.

The EPA has an active and engaged cross-organisational
Health and Safety Committee, with members voted on by
their colleagues. Health and safety incidents are actively
reported and managed. To maximise best practice,
the committee chair regularly engages with the wider
Public Sector Health and Safety network. In addition,
and in accordance with the Act, all health and safety
representatives undertake specific training.

Take a proactive approach to employee health
and well-being.

All staff members receive a worksite assessment
when they join the EPA, move desk, or have signs of
discomfort. Yoga and massage sessions are provided
onsite, at staff’s own expense. The EPA also contributes
towards eye tests and either annual flu vaccinations or
vitamin supplements.

Staff will have easy access to the
Employee Assistance Programme.

The EPA promotes the Employee Assistance Programme
(EAP) website and 0800 number on the staff intranet,
through the HR team and on posters. Staff members are
also told about EAP services during periods of change,
after natural disasters or during personal discussions with
HR team members.

Our HR policies will reflect these commitments and
our progress will be reported to the Human Rights
Commission annually.

Our HR policies are reviewed against legislative changes,
relevant legal precedent, effective equal employment
opportunities and good practice, to ensure they meet the
organisation’s requirements.
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Part D:

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Statement of responsibility

49

The Board of the EPA is responsible for the preparation of the EPA’s Financial Statements and Statement of Performance,
and for the judgements made in them.
The Board has the responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.
In the Board’s opinion, these Financial Statements and Statement of Performance fairly reflect the financial position and
operations of the EPA for the year ended 30 June 2015.
The Board is responsible for any end-of-year performance provided by the EPA under section 19A of the Public
Finance Act 1989.

Kerry Prendergast
Chair
Environmental Protection Authority

Tim Lusk
Chair, Audit and Risk Committee
Environmental Protection Authority

30 October 2015

30 October 2015
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Financial commentary
The year-end result was a surplus of $282,000 compared with a balanced budget. Revenue was lower than budget by
$4.159 million and expenditure was lower than budget by $4.441 million. The lower revenue and expenditure were due
to fewer activities involving nationally significant proposals and EEZ marine consent applications.
During 2014/15, the EPA began the implementation phase of the NZEUR project, with the expectation that it will be
completed in 2016. Overall, capital expenditure for the year was $1.967 million, with a further $3.150 million of capital
expenditure committed but not yet incurred.
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for the year ended 30 June 2015

NOTES

ACTUAL
2015
$000

BUDGET
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

24,127

24,977

22,492

295

100

329

7,770

11,274

11,838

32,192

36,351

34,659

INCOME
Revenue from the Crown

2

Interest revenue
Other revenue

3

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENDITURE
Personnel costs

4

15,644

16,752

15,315

Board remuneration

21

373

400

398

EEZ Decision-making Committee remuneration

21

999

1,300

389

853

864

2,312

1,906

1,540

1,546

12,135

15,495

15,925

31,910

36,351

35,885

Boards of Inquiry remuneration
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

6

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)
Other comprehensive revenue and expense
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE

282

(1,226)

-

-

-

282

-

(1,226)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. Note 1 refers to the accounting policies of the EPA starting on page 54.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015

NOTES

ACTUAL
2015
$000

BUDGET
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

7

4,766

1,226

2,067

Receivables

8

1,783

2,287

4,091

Investments

9

3,000

1,530

4,400

230

105

146

9,779

5,148

10,704

Prepayments
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

10

2,030

2,492

2,397

Intangible assets

11

4,755

9,230

4,327

6,785

11,722

6,724

16,564

16,870

17,428

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables

12

2,008

2,889

2,602

Employee entitlements

13

765

1,087

1,209

Operating lease

18

70

70

71

Provisions

14

-

-

-

Borrowings

15

-

-

-

2,843

4,046

3,882

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee entitlements

13

84

138

121

Operating lease

18

353

354

423

Provisions

14

-

-

-

Borrowings

15

-

-

-

437

492

544

3,280

4,538

4,426

13,284

12,332

13,002

13,284

12,332

13,002

13,284

12,332

13,002

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
General funds
TOTAL EQUITY

16

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2015

NOTES

BALANCE AT 1 JULY
Surplus / (deficit) for the year
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE

16

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ACTUAL
2015
$000

BUDGET
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

13,002

12,332

14,228

282

-

(1,226)

13,284

12,332

13,002
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2015

NOTES

ACTUAL
2015
$000

BUDGET
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

24,127

24,977

22,492

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from the Crown

2

Interest received

313

131

363

10,105

11,041

8,829

Payments to suppliers

(15,074)

(17,540)

(18,493)

Payments to employees

(16,125)

(16,676)

(15,209)

(33)

29

88

3,313

1,962

(1,930)

Receipts from sale of investments

1,400

2,870

2,100

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(228)

(300)

(379)

(1,786)

(5,842)

(1,550)

-

-

-

(614)

(3,272)

171

Capital contribution

-

-

-

Repayment of capital

-

-

-

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

-

-

-

2,699

(1,310)

(1,759)

2,067

2,536

3,826

4,766

1,226

2,067

Receipts from other revenue

Goods and services tax (net)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

17

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of intangible assets
Acquisition of investments
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

7

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in note 28.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Statement of accounting policies
REPORTING ENTITY
The Environmental Protection Authority is a Crown entity for the purposes of the Crown Entities Act 2004 and is referred
to throughout this Annual Report as the EPA. This inclusive term is used unless referring to the exercise of specific
statutory powers and functions or specific responsibilities of the legal entity, or where reference to one of the elements
of the EPA is required for clarity. The EPA was established under the Environmental Protection Authority Act 2011 (EPA
Act) and commenced activities on 1 July 2011. The EPA is domiciled in New Zealand and the ultimate parent is the
New Zealand Crown.
The primary objective of the EPA is to contribute to the efficient, effective and transparent management of
New Zealand’s environment and resources – natural and physical – and to enable New Zealand to meet its international
obligations under the environmental Acts shown in Appendix 4. The EPA does not operate to make a financial return.
Accordingly, the EPA has designated itself as a public benefit entity (PBE) for financial reporting purposes.
The financial statements of the EPA are for the year ended 30 June 2015, and were approved by the Board of the
Environmental Protection Authority on 30 October 2015.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, and the accounting policies have been applied
consistently throughout the period.
Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Crown Entities Act 2004,
which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP).
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Tier 1 PBE accounting standards.
These financial statements comply with PBE accounting standards.
These financial statements are the first financial statements presented in accordance with the new PBE accounting
standards, which came into effect on 1 July 2014. There are no material adjustments arising from transition to the new
PBE accounting standards, as explained in note 29.
Presentation currency and rounding
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($000).
Standards issued and not yet effective, and not early adopted
In May 2013, the External Reporting Board issued a new suite of PBE accounting standards for application by public
sector entities for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. The EPA has applied these standards in preparing
the 30 June 2015 financial statements.
In October 2014, the PBE suite of accounting standards was updated to incorporate requirements and guidance for the
not-for-profit sector. These updated standards apply to PBEs with reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2015.
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The EPA will apply these updated standards in preparing its 30 June 2016 financial statements. The EPA expects there
will be minimal or no change in applying these updated accounting standards.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue
The specific accounting policies for significant revenue items are explained below.
Funding from the Crown
The EPA is primarily funded by the Crown. This funding is restricted in its use for the purpose of the EPA meeting
the objectives specified in its founding legislation and the scope of the relevant Crown appropriations.
The EPA considers there are no conditions attached to the funding and therefore it is a non-exchange transaction.
It is therefore recognised as revenue at the point on entitlement.
The fair value of revenue from the Crown has been determined to be equivalent to the amounts due in the
funding arrangements.
Interest
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Provision of services
Services provided to third parties on commercial terms or cost recovery are exchange transactions.
Services provided to third parties under the HSNO Act are treated as non-exchange transactions as the fees and charges
do not reflect the actual cost of providing the services.
Revenue from these services is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion at balance sheet date.
Capital charge
Changes to the capital charge rules from 1 July 2011 mean the EPA is not required to pay any capital charge, since the
EPA total net assets do not exceed $15 million.
Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions (including those for which forward foreign exchange contracts are held) are translated
into NZ$ (the functional currency) using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Leases
Operating leases
Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the EPA are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the surplus or deficit as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid
investments, with original maturities of three months or less.
Debtors and other receivables
Short-term debtors and other receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for impairment.
Impairment of a receivable is established when there is evidence that the EPA will not be able to collect amounts due.
The amount of the impairment is the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and the present value
of the amounts expected to be collected.
Investments
Bank term deposits
Investments in bank deposits are measured at the amount invested, which approximate fair value.
Equity investments
The EPA does not have any equity investments.
Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The EPA does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks
arising from operational activities. The EPA does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Non-current assets held for sale
The EPA does not have any assets that are classified as held for sale.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment comprises computer hardware, furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvements and
office equipment.
Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Additions
The cost of an item of property, plant or equipment is recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the EPA and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.
Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.
In most instances, an item of property, plant or equipment is initially recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired
at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent costs
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the EPA and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the surplus or deficit as they
are incurred.
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Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset.
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the surplus or deficit.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment at rates that will write off the
cost (or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives. The useful lives and associated
depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated as follows:
Computer hardware

3 to 4 years

(25% – 33%)

Furniture and fixtures

6 years

(16.7%)

Leasehold improvements

6 to 9 years

(11% – 16.7%)

Office equipment

6 years

(16.7%)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated remaining useful life
of the improvements, whichever is the shorter.
The residual value and useful life of an asset are reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at least each financial year-end.
Intangible assets
Software acquisition and development
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and implement the
specific software.
Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use are recognised as an intangible asset.
Direct costs include software development and the appropriate portion of employee costs and relevant overheads.
Staff training costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs associated with maintaining computer software
are recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs associated with research activities are recognised as an expense
when incurred.
Costs associated with development and maintenance of the EPA’s website are recognised as an expense when incurred.
Amortisation
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life.
Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised.
The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as follows:
Computer software

3 to 8 years

(12.5% – 33%)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
The EPA does not hold any cash-generating assets. Assets are considered cash-generating where their primary objective
is to generate a commercial return.
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Non-cash-generating assets
Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances show the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Value in use is determined using an approach based on either a depreciated replacement cost approach, restoration cost
approach, or a service units approach. The most appropriate approach used to measure value in use depends on the
nature of the impairment and availability of information.
If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset is regarded as impaired and the carrying
amount is written down to the recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Payables
Short-term payables are recorded at their face value.
Borrowings
The EPA does not have any borrowings.
Employee entitlements
Short-term employee entitlements
Employee benefits that are due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related services are measured based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.
These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, and annual leave earned to but not yet taken at
balance date.
A liability and an expense for performance payments are recognised where there is a contractual obligation or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Long-term employee entitlements
Employee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of period in which the employee renders
the related service, such as long service leave and retirement gratuities, have been calculated on an actuarial basis.
The calculations are based on:
likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entitlement, the likelihood that staff
will reach the point of entitlement, and contractual entitlements information
the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The risk-free discount rates and salary inflation rate are published by the Treasury for consolidation into the
Government’s financial statements at 30 June 2015.
Presentation of employee entitlements
Annual leave and vested long service leave are classified as current liabilities. Non-vested long service leave and
retirement gratuities expected to be settled within 12 months of balance date are classified as current liabilities.
All other employee entitlements are classified as non-current liabilities.
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Superannuation schemes
Defined contribution schemes
Obligations for contributions to KiwiSaver and the Government Superannuation Fund are accounted for as defined
contribution superannuation schemes and are recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit as incurred.
Provisions
A provision for future expenditure of an uncertain amount or timing is recognised when there is a present obligation
(either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation, using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense and is included
in ‘finance costs’.
Equity
Equity is measured as the difference between total assets and total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into
the following components:
contributed capital
accumulated surplus / (deficit).
Goods and services tax (GST)
All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, which are stated on
a GST-inclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, Inland Revenue (IRD) is included as part of receivables or
payables in the Statement of Financial Position.
The net GST paid to or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified
as an operating cash flow in the Statement of Cash Flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.
Income tax
The EPA is a public authority and consequently is exempt from the payment of income tax. Accordingly, no provision has
been made for income tax.
Budget figures
The budget figures are derived from the Statement of Performance Expectations as approved by the Board at the
beginning of the financial year. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting
policies that are consistent with those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial statements.
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Cost allocation
The EPA has determined the cost of outputs using the cost allocation outlined below.
Direct costs are directly attributed to an output; indirect costs cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner
with a specific output.
Direct costs are charged directly to outputs. Indirect costs are charged to outputs based on cost drivers and related
activity or usage information. Depreciation and property and other premises costs, such as maintenance, are charged
on the basis of staff numbers. Personnel costs are charged on the basis of actual time incurred.
All other costs are assigned to outputs on a proportional basis, using direct personnel time as the cost driver, based
on actual data collected through the time recording system.
There have been no changes to the cost allocation methodology since the date of the last audited financial statements.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
In preparing these financial statements, the EPA has made estimates and assumptions about the future. These estimates
and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed as follows.
Estimating useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
At each balance date, the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed. Assessing the
appropriateness of useful life and residual value estimates of these assets requires a number of factors to be considered,
such as the asset’s physical condition, the EPA’s expected period of use of the asset and the expected disposal proceeds
from the future sale of the asset.
An incorrect estimate of the useful life or residual value will affect the depreciation expense recognised in the surplus
or deficit, and the carrying amount of the asset in the Statement of Financial Position.
The EPA minimises the risk of this estimation uncertainty by:
physical inspection of assets
asset replacement programmes.
The EPA has not made significant changes to past assumptions concerning useful lives and residual values.
Retirement and long service leave
Note 13 provides an analysis of the exposure in relation to estimates and uncertainties surrounding retirement and
long service leave liabilities.
Critical judgements in applying the EPA’s accounting policies
Management has exercised the following critical judgement in applying accounting policies:
Lease classification
Determining whether a lease agreement is an operating or a finance lease requires judgement as to whether the
agreement transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the EPA.
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Judgement is required on various aspects that include, but are not limited to, the fair value of the leased asset, the
economic life of the leased asset, whether or not to include renewal options in the lease term and determining an
appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value of the minimum lease payments. Classification as a finance
lease means the asset is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as property, plant and equipment, whereas
for an operating lease no such asset is recognised.
The EPA has exercised its judgement on the appropriate classification of equipment leases and has determined that
a number of lease arrangements are not finance leases.
Classification of intangible assets
The EPA purchased and developed a number of databases for the management of HSNO Act applications.
These databases are estimated to have a useful life of eight years. The EPA also took over the New Zealand Emission
Unit Register developed by the-then Ministry of Economic Development for the administration of the emissions units.
The estimated useful life of the NZEUR at 30 June 2015 is another 12 months. If a complete revamp of any database
of the register is required, the unamortised portion will be written off in the surplus or deficit when the replacement
software is implemented.

2. Revenue from the Crown
The EPA has been provided with funding from the Crown for specific purposes as set out in its founding legislation and
the scope of the relevant government appropriations. Apart from these restrictions, there are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies attached to government funding.
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

24,977

20,992

(850)

1,500

24,127

22,492

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

REVENUE FROM THE CROWN
As per Main Estimates
Adjustments as per Supplementary Estimates
TOTAL

3. Other revenue

Hazardous Substances Part 5 application fees

379

311

New Organisms Part 5 application fees

80

76

Hazardous Substances Part 6 application fees

78

115

Resource Management Act (Nationally Significant Proposals) cost recovery fees

1,021

8,611

Exclusive Economic Zone cost recovery fees

4,447

2,632

Cost recovery from Christchurch City Council

1,310

-

455

93

7,770

11,838

Other fees and revenue
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
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4. Personnel costs

Salaries and wages
Employer contributions to defined contribution plans
Increase / (decrease) in employee entitlements (note 13)
Other staff-related costs
TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

15,097

14,251

401

351

(481)

105

627

608

15,644

15,315

Employer contributions to defined contribution plans include contributions to KiwiSaver and to the Government
Superannuation Fund.

5. Capital charge
The EPA does not pay a capital charge to the Crown on its taxpayers’ funds, as its net assets are below the threshold of
$15 million.

6. Other expenses

Audit fees
Staff travel

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

56

55

772

1,069

Operating lease expense

1,323

1,307

EEZ Decision-making Committee expenses

1,953

1,292

383

3,844

Consultancy

3,775

4,670

Other

3,873

3,688

12,135

15,925

Boards of Inquiry expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

Consultancy expenses exclude consultancy for Boards of Inquiry. ‘Other’ expenses include expenses for computing and
telecommunications, office stationery, publications and office maintenance.
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7. Cash and cash equivalents
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

Cash on hand and at bank

3,766

2,067

Cash equivalents – term deposits (90 days or less)

1,000

-

4,766

2,067

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

1,380

1,799

88

10

Accrued revenue

486

2,227

Accrued interest

37

55

(208)

-

1,783

4,091

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

8. Receivables

Receivables from sale of goods and services (exchange transactions)
Receivables from other activities (non-exchange transactions)

Less provision for impairment
TOTAL DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
The ageing profile of receivables at year-end is detailed below:
2015

2014

GROSS
$000

IMPAIRMENT
$000

NET
$000

GROSS
$000

IMPAIRMENT
$000

NET
$000

1,130

-

1,130

3,637

-

3,637

Past due 1–30 days

78

(12)

66

203

-

203

Past due 31–60 days

178

(45)

133

245

-

245

Not past due

Past due 61–90 days

60

(15)

45

1

-

1

Past due over 90 days

545

(136)

409

5

-

5

1,991

(208)

1,783

4,091

-

4,091

TOTAL

All receivables older than 30 days are considered to be past due. An impairment assessment was carried out on the past
due receivables, and it was determined that a provision for impairment was required at 30 June 2015.
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Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

-

-

208

-

-

-

208

-

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

3,000

4,400

3,000

4,400

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

Term deposit maturities of 4 to 5 months with average maturity of 133 days (2014: 4 months
with average maturity of 120 days).

3,000

4,400

Weighted average effective interest rate

4.32%

4.08%

Balance at 1 July
Additional provisions made during the year
Receivables written off during the year
Balance at 30 June

9. Investments

CURRENT INVESTMENTS ARE REPRESENTED BY:
Term deposits
TOTAL CURRENT PORTION AND INVESTMENTS
There were no impairment provisions for investments.
Maturity analysis and effective interest rates of term deposits
The maturity dates and weighted average effective interest rates for term deposits are as follows:

The carrying amounts of term deposits with maturities less than 12 months approximate their fair value.
There were three term deposits, with four to five months maturity, made in 2015, invested at the interest rates of 4.25% to
4.40% (2014: two term deposits of four months each at an interest rate of 4.08%). As these term deposits were at a fixed
interest rate and measured at amortised cost, an increase or decrease in interest rates during the period did not affect the
measurement of the investments. For this reason, there was no impact on the surplus or equity.
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10. Property, plant and equipment
Movements for each class of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
COMPUTER
HARDWARE
$000

FURNITURE
AND FITTINGS
$000

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT –
OWNED
$000

LEASEHOLD
IMPROVEMENTS
$000

TOTAL
$000

2,447

1,221

501

1,580

5,749

Additions

248

128

3

-

379

Disposals

(838)

-

(24)

(81)

(943)

1,857

1,349

480

1,499

5,185

1,857

1,349

480

1,499

5,185

Additions

147

66

6

9

228

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

2,004

1,415

486

1,508

5,413

Balance at 1 July 2013

1,774

537

368

143

2,822

Depreciation expense

416

158

36

157

767

Elimination on disposal

(774)

-

(26)

(1)

(801)

1,416

695

378

299

2,788

Balance at 1 July 2014

1,416

695

378

299

2,788

Depreciation expense

221

166

37

171

595

-

-

-

-

-

1,637

861

415

470

3,383

At 1 July 2013

673

684

133

1,437

2,927

At 1 July 2014

441

654

102

1,200

2,397

At 30 June 2015

367

554

71

1,038

2,030

COST OR VALUATION
Balance at 1 July 2013

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2014
Balance at 1 July 2014

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2015
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2014

Elimination on disposal
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2015
CARRYING AMOUNTS

There is no Work in Progress balance for property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).
No impairment was required for any property, plant and equipment.
There are no restrictions over the title of the EPA’s property, plant and equipment, and nor are any property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for liabilities.
There are no finance leases at 30 June 2015.
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11. Intangible assets
Movement for each class of intangible asset is as follows:
ACQUIRED
SOFTWARE
$000

COST
Balance at 1 July 2013

8,118

Additions

1,550

Disposals

(424)

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2014

9,244

Balance at 1 July 2014

9,244

Additions

1,739

Disposals

(112)

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2015

10,871

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
Balance at 1 July 2013

4,562

Amortisation expenses
Disposals
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2014

779
(424)
4,917

Balance at 1 July 2014

4,917

Amortisation expenses

1,311

Disposals

(112)

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2015

6,116

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 1 July 2013

3,556

At 1 July 2014

4,327

At 30 June 2015

4,755

Work in progress for intangible assets at 30 June 2015 was $2,478,000 (2014: $1,240,000).
There are no restrictions over the title of the EPA’s intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged as security
for liabilities.
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12. Payables
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

845

1,035

Income in advance

56

12

Accrued expenses

568

1,189

74

58

1,543

2,294

465

308

2,008

2,602

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

-

473

Accrued performance payments

104

114

Annual leave

596

606

65

16

765

1,209

84

110

Retirement leave

-

11

TOTAL NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

-

121

849

1,330

PAYABLES UNDER EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Creditors

Other payables
TOTAL PAYABLES UNDER EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
PAYABLES UNDER NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Taxes payable (GST and PAYE)
TOTAL PAYABLES

13. Employee entitlements

CURRENT EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS ARE REPRESENTED BY:
Accrued salaries and wages

Long service leave
TOTAL CURRENT EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS
NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS ARE REPRESENTED BY:
Long service leave

TOTAL EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

The present value of the long service and retirement leave obligations depend on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis. Two key assumptions used in calculating this liability are the discount rates
and the salary inflation factor. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the carrying amount of the liability.
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Expected future payments are discounted using forward discount rates derived from the yield curve of New Zealand
government bonds. The discount rates used have maturities that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. The salary inflation factor has been determined after considering historical salary inflation patterns and after
obtaining advice from the Treasury. The discount rates used were:
1 year: 2.93% (2014: 3.7%)
2 years: 2.81% (2014: 4.04%)
3 or more years: 4.39% (2014: 5.5%).
The salary inflation factor was 3.0% (2014: 3.5%).
If the discount rates were to differ by 1% from those used, with all other factors held constant, the carrying amount of the
long service and retirement leave liability would be an estimated $5,000 (2014: $6,000) higher or lower.
If the long-term salary inflation factor were to differ by 1% from that used, with all other factors held constant, the
carrying amount of the long service and retirement liability would be an estimated $7,000 (2014: $8,000) higher or lower.

14. Provisions
As the EPA has no lease make-good clause in its current accommodation lease, no provision has been made in the
current year.

15. Borrowings
The EPA did not enter into other borrowing arrangements or financial leases in 2014/15.

16. Equity
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

GENERAL FUNDS
Balance at 1 July

13,002

14,228

Surplus / (deficit)

282

(1,226)

13,284

13,002

TOTAL EQUITY 30 JUNE
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17. Reconciliation of net surplus / (deficit) to net cash from
operating activities
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

282

(1,226)

1,906

1,546

1,906

1,546

(Gains) / losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

-

142

TOTAL ITEMS CLASSIFIED AS INVESTING OR FINANCING ACTIVITIES

-

142

2,308

(2,883)

(84)

(68)

Creditors and other payables

(547)

524

Operating lease – movements

(71)

(70)

(481)

105

NET MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS

1,125

(2,392)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

3,313

(1,930)

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

13

43

3,137

4,272

3,150

4,315

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX
ADD / (LESS) NON-CASH ITEMS:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
TOTAL NON-CASH ITEMS
ADD / (LESS) ITEMS CLASSIFIED AS INVESTING OR FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

ADD / (LESS) MOVEMENT IN WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS:
Debtors and other receivables
Prepayment

Employee entitlements

18. Capital commitments and operating leases

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
TOTAL CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred. The intangible
assets commitment represents the various contracts signed for the development of the New Zealand Emission
Trading Register.
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Operating leases as lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

Not later than one year

1,156

1,157

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,622

4,628

Later than five years

1,159

2,317

6,937

8,102

TOTAL NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASES

Operating lease commitments relate only to Grant Thornton House, in which the EPA occupies five floors with two rights
of renewal to 2027.
Operating leases as a liability
In accordance with Public Benefit Entity International Public Sector Accounting Standard (PBE IPSAS) 13 – Leases, the EPA
has spread the ‘rent holiday period’ over the life of the operating leases for the five floors at Grant Thornton House. This
has created a liability in the Statement of Financial Position.
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

Accommodation lease

70

71

TOTAL OPERATING LEASE – CURRENT

70

71

ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

Accommodation lease

353

423

TOTAL OPERATING LEASE – NON-CURRENT

353

423

OPERATING LEASE – CURRENT

OPERATING LEASE – NON-CURRENT

19. Contingent assets or liabilities
The EPA is not aware of the existence of any contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

71

20. Related-party transactions and key management personnel
The EPA is a wholly owned entity of the Crown. The Government influences the roles of the entity as well as being its
major source of revenue.
Significant transactions with government-related entities
The EPA has been provided with Crown funding of $24.127 million (2014: $22.492 million) for specific purposes as
set out in its founding legislation and the scope of the relevant government appropriations. Revenue earned from
the New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) through cost recovery of expenses related to Resource Management Act
(RMA) applications was $1.428 million (2014: $4.855 million). The amount receivable from NZTA at 30 June 2015
was $0 (2014: $1,729,000).
Key management personnel
No transactions were entered into with key management personnel during the year, other than those disclosed below.
No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related parties.
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Key management personnel compensation
ACTUAL
2015

ACTUAL
2014

$1,391,000

$1,406,000

6.77

7.00

Post-employment benefits

-

-

Other long-term benefits

-

-

Termination benefits

-

-

$181,000

$201,000

1.00

1.12

$115,000

$116,000

1.02

1.06

$79,000

$81,000

0.72

0.75

$999,000

$389,000

4.87

1.91

$2,765,000

$2,193,000

14.38

11.84

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM
Salaries, fees and other short-term employee benefits
Full-time equivalent members

BOARD MEMBERS
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
NGĀ KAIHAUTŪ TIKANGA TAIAO
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES AND NEW ORGANISMS COMMITTEE
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
EEZ DECISION-MAKING COMMITTEE
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
TOTAL KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION
TOTAL FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT PERSONNEL

Key management personnel include all members of the Board, Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao, the HSNO Committee and
the EEZ Decision-making Committee, the Chief Executive and the six members of the Executive Leadership Team. Fulltime equivalent for the Board is based on 50 working days for the Chair, 37.5 working days for the Deputy Chair and 30
working days for members, in accordance with Cabinet Office Circular CO (09)5. The full-time equivalent for the other
committee members is based on the hours paid to the committee members.
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21. Board member and EEZ Decision-making Committee remuneration
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

BOARD
Kerry Prendergast

Chair

48

48

Kevin Thompson

Deputy Chair

26

26

Anake Goodall

Member (resigned June 2014)

-

19

Tim Lusk

Member

21

21

Graham Pinnell

Member (term ended October 2013)

-

7

Taria Tahana

Member

21

21

Gillian Wratt

Member

21

21

Andrew Dadelszen

Member (resigned July 2014)

2

21

Nicki Crauford

Member (appointed October 2013)

21

15

Kura Denness

Member (appointed June 2014)

21

2

181

201

NGĀ KAIHAUTŪ TIKANGA TAIAO
Steven (Tīpene) Wilson

Chair (appointed Chair July 2013)

31

28

Ngaire Burley

Deputy Chair (appointed September 2014)

16

-

Nick Roskuge

Deputy Chair (resigned October 2014)

6

15

James Ataria

Member (term ended December 2014)

11

15

Glenice Paine

Member (term ended June 2014)

James Doherty

Member

Wharemāwhai Mina Timutimu

Member (term ended December 2014)

Marino Tahi

Member

Kelly May

Member (appointed October 2013)

James Whetu

Member (appointed July 2014)

Maree Haupai Puke

Member (appointed November 2014)

-

17

13

16

2

9

10

12

4

4

17

-

5

-

115

116

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES AND NEW ORGANISMS COMMITTEE
Kevin Thompson1

Chair

14

17

Helen Atkins

Member

16

16

Val Orchard

Member (term ended August 2013)

-

5

Deborah Read

Member

8

7

Shaun Ogilvie

Member (term ended June 2014)

-

8

Damian Stone

Member (appointed July 2013)

8

6

Kerry Laing

Member (appointed July 2013)

12

11

Louise Malone

Member (appointed July 2013)

7

5

John Taylor

Member (appointed November 2013)

9

6

Nick Roskuge

Member (appointed July 2014)

3

-

77

81
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ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

-

70

EEZ DECISION-MAKING COMMITTEE
Brett Rogers

Member (appointed October 2013)

David Hill

Member (appointed May 2014)

52

6

Gillian Wratt1

Member (appointed October 2013)

51

42

Greg Hill

Member (appointed October 2013)

1

84

Greg Ryder

Member (appointed May 2014)

114

10

Lennie Johns

Member (appointed May 2014)

102

9

Neil Walter

Member (appointed May 2014)

144

12

Nicki Crauford1

Member (appointed May 2014)

92

9

Stephen Christensen

Member (appointed October 2013)

1

55

William Kapea

Member (appointed October 2013)

1

92

Te Taru White

Member (appointed July 2014)

29

-

Greg Shaw

Member (appointed October 2014)

30

-

Sue Powell

Member (appointed October 2014)

30

-

Miria Pomare

Member (appointed October 2014)

39

-

Don Robertson

Member (appointed July 2014)

70

-

Alick Shaw

Member (appointed July 2014)

38

-

Alan Bickers

Member (appointed October 2014)

38

-

Kura Denness1

Member (appointed July 2014)

29

-

David Binnie

Member (appointed July 2014)

12

-

David McMahon

Member (appointed June 2014)

16

-

Sharron McGarry

Member (appointed July 2014)

48

-

Kaye Thorn

Member (appointed June 2014)

10

Jane Jones

Member (appointed July 2014)

23

-

Gerda Kushel

Member (appointed July 2014)

20

-

Tim Lusk1

Member (appointed June 2014)

8

-

Basil Morrison

Member (appointed July 2014)

TOTAL BOARD AND COMMITTEE REMUNERATION

1

-

999

389

1,373

397

Note 1: Board members who sat on the Hazardous Substance and New Organisms Committee and EEZ Decision-making Committee received
additional fees.
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22. Employee remuneration
The number of employees or former employees who received remuneration and other benefits totalling $100,000 or
more within specified $10,000 bands were as follows:
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

$100,000 – $109,999

9

9

$110,000 – $119,999

9

7

$120,000 – $129,999

6

3

$130,000 – $139,999

3

4

$140,000 – $149,999

2

-

$160,000 – $169,999

-

1

$170,000 – $179,999

1

1

$180,000 – $189,999

3

3

$190,000 – $199,999

-

1

$320,000 – $329,999

-

1

$340,000 – $349,999

1

-

34

30

TOTAL REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE

TOTAL EMPLOYEE RENUMERATION

The total remuneration and other benefits of the Chief Executive was in the $340,000 to $349,999 band (2014: $320,000
to $329,000 band).
During the year ended 30 June 2015, two employees received a total of $46,000 in compensation or other benefits in
relation to cessation (2014: three employees received a total of $34,000). No Board member received any compensation
or other benefits in relation to cessation (2014: Nil).

23. Indemnity
The Board has insurance cover against loss caused by wrongful acts or omissions of test certifiers approved by the
Board under the HSNO Act, where the acts or omissions occurred in a professional capacity involving test certifiers’
duties under the HSNO Act. The Board has also agreed to indemnify members (as well as members of Ngā Kaihautū
Tikanga Taiao, members of the HSNO Committee, external experts co-opted to Decision-making Committees and EPA
employees) for acts or omissions made in good faith and in the performance or intended performance of the EPA’s
functions. The Board has insurance cover for members of the Board and staff for personal accident and travel risks
associated with overseas travel.

24. Events after the balance sheet date
No significant events occurred between 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil) and the date of signing the financial statements that
would materially affect the financial statements.
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25. Financial instrument categories
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities in each financial instrument category are as follows:
ACTUAL
2015
$000

ACTUAL
2014
$000

Cash and cash equivalents

4,766

2,067

Debtors and other receivables

1,260

1,809

Accrued revenue

486

2,227

Accrued interest

37

55

3,000

4,400

9,549

10,558

2,008

2,602

-

-

2,008

2,602

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Other financial assets
TOTAL LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST
Creditors and other payables
Borrowings
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

26. Financial instrument risks
The EPA’s activities expose it to a variety of financial instrument risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The EPA has a number of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments to minimise exposure.
These policies do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.
Market risk
The interest rates on the EPA’s investments are disclosed in note 9.
Fair value interest rate risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The EPA’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk is limited to its bank deposits, which are held at fixed
rates of interest. The EPA does not actively manage its exposure to fair value interest rate risk.
Cash flow interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Investments issued at variable interest rates expose the EPA to cash flow interest rate risk.
The EPA’s investment policy requires a spread of investment maturity dates to limit exposure to short-term interest rate
movements. The EPA currently has no variable interest rate investments.
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Sensitivity analysis
If the average daily bank interest rate had been 50 basis points lower or higher for the year ended 30 June 2015, with all
other variables held constant, the surplus for the year would have been $5,000 lower or higher (2014: deficit would be
$37,000 higher or lower).
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates.
The EPA has no significant exposure to foreign currency risks, as most of its financial instruments are denominated
in New Zealand dollars, with only $38,000 (2014: $24,000) denominated in US dollars at 30 June 2015.
Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
The EPA has no financial instrument that is exposed to changes in market prices.
Credit risk
A credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to the EPA, causing the EPA to incur a loss. The EPA
has processes in place to review the credit quality of customers before granting credit.
Due to the timing of its cash inflows and outflows, the EPA invests surplus cash with Westpac Banking Corporation.
The EPA’s investment policy allows the investment of cash with other registered banks with a Standard and Poor’s credit
rating of AA- or higher. The EPA has experienced no defaults of interest or principal payments for term deposits.
2015
$000

2014
$000

7,766

6,467

7,766

6,467

COUNTER-PARTIES WITH CREDIT RATINGS
CASH AT BANK AND TERM DEPOSITS
AATOTAL CASH AT BANK AND TERM DEPOSITS

The EPA’s maximum credit exposure for each class of financial instrument is represented by the total carrying amount
of cash and cash equivalents (note 7), receivables (note 8), and term deposits (note 9). No collateral is held as security
against these financial instruments, including instruments that are overdue or impaired.
The EPA has significant concentrations of credit risk from a limited number of parties, through the cost recovery of
expenses related to RMA and EEZ Act applications. The EPA has no significant concentration of credit risk from other
operations, as it invests funds only with registered banks with specified Standard and Poor’s credit ratings.
Contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities, excluding derivatives
The table below analyses the EPA’s financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) into relevant maturity groupings, based on
the remaining period at the balance date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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CARRYING
AMOUNT

CONTRACTUAL
CASH FLOW

LESS THAN
6 MONTHS

6–12
MONTHS

LATER THAN
1 YEAR

2,602

2,602

2,602

-

-

2,008

2,008

2,008

-

-

2014
Creditors and other payables (note 12)
2015
Creditors and other payables (note 12)

The EPA does not have any derivative financial instruments (2014: Nil).

27. Capital management
The EPA’s capital is its equity, which comprises accumulated funds and other reserves. Equity is represented by net assets.
The EPA is subject to the financial management and accountability provisions of the Crown Entities Act 2004, which
impose restrictions on borrowings, acquisition of securities, issuing guarantees and indemnities, and the use of derivatives.
The EPA manages its equity as a by-product of prudently managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and
general financial dealings, to ensure the EPA effectively achieves its objectives and purpose while remaining a going concern.

28. Explanation of significant variances against budget
Explanations for significant variations from EPA budget figures in the Statement of Performance Expectations are as follows:
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Total revenue
Overall, the decrease in revenue of $4,159,000 was mainly due to lower cost recovery from nationally significant proposal and EEZ
applications (which together yielded $3,504,000) and a transfer of $850,000 of Crown revenue to the 2015/16 financial year.
Personnel costs
The decrease in personnel costs of $1,108,000 was due mainly to having fewer staff employed to work on nationally
significant proposal and EEZ applications.
Board members’ remuneration
The decrease of $27,000 was due to having one member fewer on the Board and one member fewer on the Ngā
Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao committee.
EEZ Decision-making Committee remuneration
The decrease of $301,000 was due to receiving fewer EEZ applications than anticipated.
Boards of Inquiry fees
The decrease in Board of Inquiry fees of $11,000 was due to fewer hearing days for nationally significant
proposal applications.
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
The depreciation charge for the year was increased by $366,000, to increase the amortisation rate of the existing
New Zealand Emissions Unit Register because its useful life is expected to finish on 30 June 2016.
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Other expenses
The decrease in other expenses of $3,360,000 was mainly due to lower consultancy expenses, and lower domestic travel,
publication and other expenses. The decrease in these expenses mainly related to the reduction in nationally significant
proposal and EEZ applications.
Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents
More cash was invested in term deposits with maturity of less than 90 days.
Non-current assets
Non-current assets were less than budget by $4,937,000, mainly due to lower payments for the development of the
New Zealand Emissions Trading Register, furniture and fittings, and other software developments.
Employee entitlements
Employee entitlements were less than budget by $376,000, largely due to the lower number of staff employed.
Creditors and other payables
Creditors and other payables were less than budget by $881,000, mainly due to lower supplier accruals at year-end.
Operating lease
This liability was created as a result of complying with PBE IPSAS 13-Leases.
Statement of Changes in Equity
Surplus / deficit for the year
The operating result for the year was a surplus of $282,000 compared with a balanced budget. The budget variances are
explained in the variations of the Statement of Comprehensive Income above.
Statement of Changes in Cash Flows
Receipts from other revenue were less than budget, mainly due to lower revenue accruals for cost recovery of nationally
significant proposal and EEZ applications at year-end. The lower cost-recovery revenue led to lower cash outflow for
personnel costs and payments to suppliers.
Payments for intangible assets were also lower. The result was that term deposits were kept for a longer period and,
therefore, receipts from investments were lower.

29. Adjustments arising on transition to the new PBE accounting standards
Reclassification adjustments
No reclassifications of the financial statements were made in adopting the new PBE (public benefit entity)
accounting standards.
Recognition and measurement adjustments
No adjustments were made to the 30 June 2014 comparative information that resulted in changes to the surplus or
deficit for the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the readers of the Environmental
Protection Authority’s financial statements
and performance information for the year
ended 30 June 2015

the performance information:
•

- for each class of reportable outputs:

The Auditor-General is the auditor of the Environmental
Protection Authority (EPA). The Auditor-General has
appointed me, Robert Cox, using the staff and resources
of Audit New Zealand, to carry out the audit of the
financial statements and the performance information,
including the performance information for appropriations,
of the EPA on her behalf.

- its standards of performance achieved as
compared with forecasts included in the
statement of performance expectations
for the financial year;
- its actual revenue and output expenses as
compared with the forecasts included in the
statement of performance expectations for
the financial year;

Opinion on the financial statements and
the performance information

- what has been achieved with the appropriations;

We have audited:
the financial statements of the EPA on pages 50 to 79,
that comprise the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2015, the statement of comprehensive revenue
and expense, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date
and the notes to the financial statements that include
accounting policies and other explanatory information;
and
the performance information of the EPA on pages
14 to 18, 20 to 22, 24 to 28, 30 to 32, 34, 36 and 38 to 39.
In our opinion:
the financial statements of the EPA:
•

present fairly, in all material respects:
- its financial position as at 30 June 2015;
- its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended; and

•

comply with generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand and have been prepared in
accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards.

presents fairly, in all material respects, the EPA’s
performance for the year ended 30 June 2015,
including:

- the actual expenses or capital expenditure
incurred compared with the appropriated or
forecast expenses or capital expenditure; and
•

complies with generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand.

Our audit was completed on 30 October 2015. This is
the date at which our opinion is expressed.
The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition,
we outline the responsibilities of the Board and our
responsibilities, and explain our independence.
Basis of opinion
We carried out our audit in accordance with the AuditorGeneral’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand).
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements and the performance information are free
from material misstatement.
Material misstatements are differences or omissions of
amounts and disclosures that, in our judgement, are likely
to influence readers’ overall understanding of the financial
statements and the performance information. If we had
found material misstatements that were not corrected,
we would have referred to them in our opinion.
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An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements and the performance information.
The procedures selected depend on our judgement,
including our assessment of risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements and the performance
information, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the preparation of the EPA’s financial
statements and performance information in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the EPA’s internal control.
An audit also involves evaluating:
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
whether they have been consistently applied;
the reasonableness of the significant accounting
estimates and judgements made by the Board;
the appropriateness of the reported performance
information within the EPA’s framework for
reporting performance;
the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial
statements and the performance information; and
the overall presentation of the financial statements
and the performance information.
We did not examine every transaction, nor do we
guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements
and the performance information. Also, we did not
evaluate the security and controls over the electronic
publication of the financial statements and the
performance information.
We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is responsible for preparing financial statements
and performance information that:
comply with generally accepted accounting practice
in New Zealand;
present fairly the EPA’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows; and
present fairly the EPA’s performance.
The Board’s responsibilities arise from the Crown Entities
Act 2004 and the Public Finance Act 1989.
The Board is responsible for such internal control as it
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements and performance information that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. The Board is also responsible for the publication of
the financial statements and the performance information,
whether in printed or electronic form.
Responsibilities of the Auditor
We are responsible for expressing an independent
opinion on the financial statements and the performance
information and reporting that opinion to you based
on our audit. Our responsibility arises from the
Public Audit Act 2001.
Independence
When carrying out the audit, we followed the
independence requirements of the Auditor-General,
which incorporate the independence requirements
of the External Reporting Board.
Other than the audit, we have no relationship with
or interests in the EPA.

Robert Cox
Audit New Zealand
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zealand
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New organism decisions made by Institutional Biological
Safety Committees (IBSCs) under delegated authority
during 2014/15 as at 30 June 2015
IBSCs in academic and research institutions and within industry are authorised to undertake decision-making functions
for applications relating to low-risk genetically modified organisms in containment.
In 2014/15, no decisions by IBSCs involved biological material derived from native flora or fauna, or biological material
derived from Māori DNA.
New organism decisions made by IBSCs under delegated authority for 2014/15
TOTAL DECISIONS
NOTIFIED 2014/15

TOTAL DECISIONS
NOTIFIED 2013/14

GMO development in containment – rapid assessment

1

1

GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

1

0

Minor or technical amendments

5

3

SUBTOTAL

7

4

GMO development in containment – rapid assessment

0

2

GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

0

2

Minor or technical amendments

2

5

SUBTOTAL

2

9

16

5

IBSC APPLICATION TYPE

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY

MASSEY UNIVERSITY

UNIVERSITY OF AUCKLAND
GMO development in containment – rapid assessment
GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

0

2

Minor or technical amendments

18

5

SUBTOTAL

34

12

GMO development in containment – rapid assessment

5

1

GMO import into containment – rapid assessment

5

2

Minor or technical amendments

1

0

SUBTOTAL

11

3

TOTAL

54

28

UNIVERSITY OF OTAGO
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Appendix 2
Incidents and inquiries during 2014/15
Incidents involving new organisms and hazardous substances are defined as events that may cause adverse effects to
human health and safety or to the environment, and include instances of non-compliance. The data the EPA collects
about incidents comes from enforcement agencies, the New Zealand Fire Service, or media monitoring.
The EPA monitors new organism and hazardous substance incidents to:
determine the adequacy of controls placed on approved organisms and substances
assess whether the HSNO Act is effective in preventing harm to human health and the environment.

Incident levels
Incidents are categorised according to the severity of their effects, taking into account the nature and particular
circumstances of the incident. There are five levels of incident: 1 (minimal), 2 (minor), 3 (moderate), 4 (major) and
5 (massive). See the HSNO incident category and level table later in the report for more details of incident levels.

New organism incidents 2014/15
Number of new organism incidents, including genetically modified organisms, in 2014/15
and 2013/14
2014/15

2013/14

Level 1

0

2

Level 2

52

29

TOTAL

52

31
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Further information on zoo animals and genetically modified organisms
Zoo animal incidents in 2014/15
DESCRIPTION

Escapes / unapproved release from physical enclosure

NUMBER

26

Escapes / unapproved release from containment facility

1

Incidents resulting in adverse effects on people

8

Incidents involving members of the public but no adverse effect

6

TOTAL ZOO ANIMAL INCIDENTS

41

Genetically modified organism incidents in 2014/15
DESCRIPTION

NUMBER

GMO material housed in incorrect containment

1

Damage to containment

1

GMO outside containment facility

1

TOTAL GENETICALLY MODIFIED ORGANISM (GMO) INCIDENTS

31

Note 1: All incidents involved GMOs that presented low risk to the environment and people. All three incidents were investigated by the Ministry
for Primary Industries.

New organism incidents (non-zoo or GMO) in 2014/15
DESCRIPTION

NUMBER

Procedure breach

5

Potential adverse effect on people

1

Damage to containment

1

Incursion

1

TOTAL NEW ORGANISM INCIDENTS (NON-ZOO OR GMO)

8

More detailed information about reported incidents is published on our website.
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Hazardous substance incidents 2014/15
During the year, 938 incidents involving hazardous substances were reported to the EPA. More than 96 percent of the
incidents were categorised as Level 1.
A lower number of incidents was reported this year than for 2013/14. This decrease may reflect a general variation
in incidents from year to year. As with last year, non-HSNO incidents such as fuel tank leaks, batteries and other
manufactured articles have largely been removed from the data, where they could be identified. Note also that this
data only represents the information known or reported to the EPA at the time this report was produced.
Thirteen of the incidents were categorised as Level 3 (moderate) and none at higher levels. In 2013/14, there were
17 incidents at Level 3. The nature of the incidents this year is comparable to previous years:
most incidents resulted from spills or leakages
most incidents occurred in workplaces or public places
the most common substances associated with the incidents were petrol, diesel, hydrocarbon gases
(including LPG) and fireworks.
More detailed information about the reported incidents is on our website.
Type of hazardous substance incidents 2014/15 compared with 2013/14
TYPE

2014/15

%

2013/14

Spills / leakages

556

59

711 (65%)

Fires

317

34

312 (28%)

Other

54

6

66 (6%)

Explosions

6

<1

10 (<1%)

Spray drift

5

<1

1 (<1%)

TOTAL

938
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Location of hazardous substance incidents 2014/15 compared with 2013/14

2014/15

% OF TOTAL
INCIDENTS

2013/14

% OF TOTAL
INCIDENTS

Public space

498

53

582

39

Work

426

45

490

33

Motor vehicle

103

11

165

11

Private dwelling

INCIDENT LOCATION

208

22

222

15

Other

10

1

28

2

Train

6

<1

3

<1

Aircraft

1

<1

3

<1

Ship

3

<1

2

<1

TOTAL

1,255

1,495

Note: Incidents can have more than one location.

Common substances associated with hazardous substance incidents 2014/15
NO. OF
INCIDENTS
2014/15

INCIDENTS
WITH EFFECTS
ON PEOPLE

Hydrocarbon gases including LPG

213

3

83

Fireworks / other accelerant-related fires

257

4

212

Petrol

106

3

32

Diesel / aviation / heavy fuel

41

0

14

Acids

25

2

1

Ammonia

31

1

9

Compressed gases

21

0

7

Chlorine

32

3

15

Liquid hydrocarbons excluding petrol and diesel

80

0

16

Agrichemicals

12

3

4

8

0

0

SUBSTANCE

Mercury
Alkali

INCIDENTS WITH
ENVIRONMENTAL
EFFECTS

8

1

2

Vertebrate toxic agents

22

0

3

Other

82

4

27

938

24

425

TOTAL
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HSNO incident categories and levels
INCIDENT CATEGORY
AND LEVEL

FACTORS

0

Insufficient
information to
assess

Further information required to assess the incident level.

1

Minimal

People
Mild reversible short-term adverse health effects for individuals in a highly localised area.
Environment
Highly localised and contained environmental impact, affecting a few (less than 10) animals;
no discernible ecosystem impact.
Economic
Some damage to property, with possible disruption to businesses.
Community
No or minor social disruption; building evacuated.
Controls
Adequate, involving human error or breach of controls.

2

Minor

People
Mild reversible short-term adverse health effects for discrete groups; minor injuries not
requiring hospitalisation.
Environment
Localised and contained reversible environmental impact; some local plant or animal
communities temporarily damaged; no discernible ecosystem impact or species damage.
Economic
Local short-term adverse economic effects on small organisations (businesses, individuals);
temporary job losses; damage to property.
Community
Social disruption to a community; multiple buildings or street evacuated.
Controls
Controls adequate, involving human error or breach of controls.
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INCIDENT CATEGORY
AND LEVEL

3

Moderate

FACTORS

People
Serious harm to individuals and/or reversible medium-term adverse health effects for
community (requiring hospitalisation); one death.
Environment
Measurable long-term damage to local plant and animal communities, but no obvious
spread beyond defined boundaries; medium-term individual ecosystem damage; no species
damage.
Economic
Regional adverse economic effects on small organisations (businesses, individuals);
temporary job losses; damage to property.
Community
Social disruption to a community; surrounding area evacuated.
Controls
Involves human error or significant breach of controls; controls appear adequate.
Some public interest.

4

Major

People
Serious harm to individuals and/or reversible adverse health effects reaching beyond the
immediate community; more than one death.
Environment
Long-term / irreversible damage to localised ecosystem but no species loss.
Economic
Medium-term (one to five years) regional adverse economic effects with some national
implications; medium-term job losses; significant property damage.
Community
Social disruption to a community, including larger-scale evacuations.
Controls
Involves a system/control failure or lack of adequate controls.
Public or political interest requiring an inquiry.

5

Massive

People
Significant irreversible adverse health effects reaching beyond the immediate community
and/or multiple deaths.
Environment
Extensive irreversible ecosystem damage, including species loss.
Economic
Measurable adverse effect on GDP; some long-term (more than five years) job losses.
Community
Major social disruption, with entire surrounding area evacuated and impacts on wider
community.
Controls
Involves substantial system/control failure resulting in public or political outrage.
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Appendix 3
New organism and hazardous substance applications:
further information
New organism decisions – Part 5
Note: This table presents information on the number of applications processed by the EPA. For decisions by Institutional
Biological Safety Committees (IBSCs), see Appendix 1.
ACTUAL
NUMBERS
2014/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2014/151

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2013/14

Notified

2

100

100

Rapid

1

100

100

Notified

0

-

N/A

Non-notified

8

100

100

Rapid

0

-

N/A

APPLICATION TYPE

NEW ORGANISM RELEASE (INCLUDES FULL AND CONDITIONAL)

NEW ORGANISM CONTAINMENT

GENETICALLY MODIFIED ORGANISM (GMO) RELEASE (INCLUDES FULL AND CONDITIONAL)
Notified

0

-

N/A

Rapid

0

-

N/A

Notified

0

-

N/A

Non-notified

4

100

100

Rapid

5

100

100

0

-

N/A

7

-

N/A

GMO CONTAINMENT (INCLUDES DEVELOPMENTS AND IMPORTS)

TRANSHIPMENT (GMO OR NEW ORGANISM)
Transhipment
DETERMINATION OF NEW ORGANISM STATUS
Determination
TOTAL

27

Note 1: Includes applications with time waivers granted under section 59 of the HSNO Act.
N/A = no statutory timeframe requirements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

91

New organism decisions – Part 5: Non-statutory activity
APPLICATION TYPE

Amendment of existing approvals
Non-statutory advice of status in New Zealand

2014/15

2013/14

8

7

24

34

54

283

1

1

87

70

IBSC ACTIVITY
Monitoring of IBSC decisions by the EPA
Audit of IBSC delegation
TOTAL
Note 1: The number of IBSC decisions monitored by the EPA has been revised since the 2013/14 Annual Report.
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Number of hazardous substance decisions and advice – Parts 5 and 6a

ACTUAL
2014/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2014/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2013/14

6

100

100

Non-notified

53

100

100

Rapid

27

100

100

12

100

100

0

-

N/A

12

100

100

Grounds

5

N/A

N/A

Modified

2

100

100

Full

0

-

100

Externally generated

0

-

N/A

Internally generated

0

-

N/A

Amendments

1

N/A

N/A

Amendment of existing approval

8

N/A

N/A

Statutory determination on a substance

0

-

N/A

APPLICATION TYPE

IMPORT OR MANUFACTURE FOR RELEASE
Notified

IMPORT OR MANUFACTURE IN CONTAINMENT
Non-notified
EMERGENCY USE APPLICATIONS
Special emergency
TRANSHIPMENT
Transhipment of hazardous substance
REASSESSMENTS

GROUP STANDARDS

OTHER

TOTAL

126

Non-statutory advice – Status of substances

254

N/A

N/A

3

N/A

N/A

Non-statutory advice – Product labelling
TOTAL NON-STATUTORY ADVICE

257
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Number of hazardous substance decisions made by WorkSafe NZ under delegated authority
(1 September 2014 to 30 June 2015)
Applications transferred and decided

APPLICATION TYPE

Test certifier approvals1
Test certifier applications withdrawn3
Periodic tester approvals
Periodic tester applications withdrawn

1/9/14
– 30/6/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2014/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2013/14

13

n/d2

N/A

n/d2

N/A

8
14
5

Note 1: Includes new approvals, extensions and renewals of existing approvals.
Note 2: n/d = not determined. Statutory timeframes were not assessed for applications received at the EPA and transferred to WorkSafe NZ. Some
of these applications had been with the EPA for a lengthy period before being transferred.
Note 3: Applications withdrawn by applicants because they were unable to provide required statutory information. These applications have been
active since 2010 (one application), 2012 (six), 2013 (four) and 2014 (two).

Applications received since 1/09/14 and decided

1/9/14
– 30/6/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2014/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES
2013/14

Test certifier approvals1

15

67

100

Periodic tester approvals

23

100

100

1/9/14
– 30/6/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES2
2014/15

% MEETING ALL
STATUTORY
TIMEFRAMES2
2013/14

For Vertebrate Toxic Agents VTAs

386

N/A

N/A

For explosives

228

N/A

N/A

APPLICATION TYPE

Note 1: Includes new approvals, extensions and renewals of existing approvals.

Applications decided1

APPLICATION TYPE

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE LICENCES

Note 1: This includes applications transferred from the EPA and applications received at WorkSafe NZ since 1 September 2014.
Note 2: There are no statutory timeframes for these applications.
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Number of hazardous substance decisions – Part 6

APPLICATION TYPE

APPLICATIONS
DECIDED1

APPROVALS
Burners
Compliance plans (tanks and secondary containment)

5
34

Dispensers

0

Disused tanks

9

Inspection agencies

1

Vaporisers

0

TEST CERTIFICATES
Extension of location test certificate

2

WAIVERS
Pre-commissioning requirements for cylinders

34

Fire-fighting facility requirements

4

Reduction of separation distances

30

Waivers for secondary containment

0

Clearance of imported cylinder fittings

0

CODES OF PRACTICE
Approved codes of practice
TOTAL

5
124

Note 1: Includes applications transferred from the EPA and applications received at WorkSafe NZ since 1 September 2014. There are no statutory
timeframes for these applications.
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Number of decisions concerning ozone-depleting substances

APPLICATION TYPE

ACTUAL
2014/15

ACTUAL
2013/14

1
Special permit to import HCFCs
Regulation 9A
HCFC wholesaler import
Regulation 11

Phased out from
31 December
2014

8

1

4

21
Import HCFC

Phased out from
31 December
2014

41 Approvals

7

19

25

24

0

3

10

9

65

108

ACTUAL
2014/15

ACTUAL
2013/14

Import hazardous waste

53

33

Export hazardous waste

(plus 2
amendments)

26

8

7

94

66

Regulation 9
Export permit
Regulation 23
Import exemption
Regulation 33
Methyl bromide wholesaler import
Regulation 7(1)
Methyl bromide replacement
Regulation 7(3)
TOTAL

0 Declines

Import/export permits

APPLICATION TYPE

33

Transit of hazardous waste
TOTAL

Appendices

96

Appendix 4
Legislation fully or partly administered by the EPA as at
30 June 2015
Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004
Resource Management Act 1991
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996
Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996
Climate Change Response Act 2002
Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf (Environmental Effects) Act 2012
The EPA is classified as a Crown Agent under the Crown Entities Act 2004. This means it is required to give effect to
government policy relating to its functions and objectives, if so directed.
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Environmental user charges
Under the HSNO Act, the EPA Board may consider imposing an environmental user charge as an alternative to or in
addition to controls in granting an approval for a hazardous substance. The EPA Board did not consider imposing
environmental user charges in the 2014/15 financial year. With all approvals granted to date, controls were considered
the most effective means of managing risks throughout the lifecycles of the approved substances.
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Appendix 6
Terms and abbreviations
Board of Inquiry

Independent board appointed by the Minister for the Environment to decide proposals
of national significance under the RMA. It must include no fewer than three and no
more than five members, and the chair must be a current, former or retired Environment
Court judge or retired High Court judge. Decisions of the Board of Inquiry are not made
by the EPA.

Call in

The ability of the Minister for the Environment to direct that an application be decided
by a different decision maker.
Under the HSNO Act, the Minister can direct that he or she will decide the application if
the Minister considers the application will have significant effects or there are significant
effects in an area about which the EPA lacks sufficient knowledge or experience.
Under the RMA, the Minister can direct that a matter he or she considers is nationally
significant be decided by a Board of Inquiry or the Environment Court. If the matter is
partly or fully in the coastal marine area, the Minister of Conservation will also have a
role in the direction.

CCRA

Climate Change Response Act 2002.

EEZ

The Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf.

Emissions Trading Scheme

The system in which New Zealand Units are traded in accordance with the Climate
Change Response Act 2002. Effectively, one New Zealand Unit allows a holder to emit 1
metric tonne of carbon dioxide-equivalent.

ETS

Emissions Trading Scheme.

Generic approvals

Approvals covering a broad range of organisms or substances that fall into the same or
similar risk categories.

Genetically modified
organism

Any organism whose genetic material has been modified by in vitro techniques.

HSNO Act

Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996.

HSNO Committee

A committee of the EPA with delegated decision-making powers relating to applications
under the HSNO Act.

Industrial allocation

An allocation of units to entities carrying out eligible activities, to help them manage
increased costs as a result of the ETS, while they make the changes needed to reduce
their energy dependency and adjust to emissions pricing.

Institutional Biological
Safety Committee (IBSC)

A committee set up by an approved institution that acts under delegation from the EPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

99

International conventions

New Zealand has obligations under a number of international environmental
agreements that require controls to be imposed on certain chemicals, hazardous waste,
ozone-depleting substances and new organisms. The conventions are:
Stockholm Convention on Persistent Organic Pollutants
Rotterdam Convention on the Prior Informed Consent Procedure for Certain
Hazardous Chemicals and Pesticides in International Trade
Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Waste
and their Disposal
Waigani Convention (Convention to Ban the Importation into Forum Island Countries
of Hazardous and Radioactive Wastes and to Control the Transboundary Movement
and Management of Hazardous Wastes within the South Pacific Region)
Vienna Convention and Montreal Protocol on the protection of the ozone layer
Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety to the Convention on Biological Diversity.

International
Transaction Log

An international log maintained by the Secretariat of the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change to confirm the validity of transactions, including the
issue and transfer of Kyoto units between registries and between accounts in the
NZEUR.

Kyoto Protocol

An international agreement under the United Nations Framework Convention on
Climate Change, to address the problem of climate change. It sets binding targets for
the developed countries that ratify it, aimed at limiting the amount of greenhouse gases
they emit.

Kyoto Units

All of the unit types specified in, or in accordance with, the Kyoto Protocol.

Methodology

The Hazardous Substances and New Organisms (Methodology) Order 1998, a regulation
the EPA must apply to decision making under Part 5 of the HSNO Act.

Nationally significant
proposal

An application made under the RMA that is determined by the Minister for the
Environment, the Minister of Conservation, or both Ministers jointly, to be a proposal
or in part a proposal with national significance when evaluated against the factors
of national significance in section 142(3) of the RMA or other factors the Minister(s)
consider relevant.

New organism

Any organism, including a genetically modified organism, not present in New Zealand
before 28 July 1998, the date on which the new organism elements of the HSNO Act
came into force.

New Zealand Emission
Trading Register (NZETR)

An improved system that will replace the NZEUR to better reflect the system’s functions.

New Zealand Emission
Unit Register (NZEUR)

The system that manages the accounting, reporting and reconciliation of emissions and
unit holdings and transactions as part of the New Zealand Emissions Trading Scheme
established by the Climate Change Response Act 2002.

New Zealand Units

The primary unit of trade issued by the Crown in the New Zealand Emissions Trading
Scheme. A New Zealand Unit represents 1 metric tonne of carbon dioxide-equivalent.
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NZU

New Zealand Unit.

OLPA

Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996 and Amendment Act 2011.

Rapid assessment
(hazardous substances)

The EPA may make a rapid assessment if it is satisfied a new substance has a similar
composition and similar hazardous properties to an approved substance, where
the hazardous properties of the new substance are low, or it has been formulated
to be a lesser hazard than an approved substance. The HSNO Act also provides for
rapid assessment and approval of hazardous substances in an emergency or ‘special
emergency’.

Rapid assessment
(new organisms)

The EPA may make a rapid assessment if it is satisfied the information supplied meets
the prescribed criteria for the ‘release’ of the new organism, or the development or
import of genetically modified organisms. In the latter case, the information provided
must be sufficient to meet the criteria for a low-risk genetic modification specified in
regulations made under section 41 of the HSNO Act.

Reassessment

Occurs when the grounds for reassessment under section 62 of the HSNO Act are
met. Reassessment means reviewing the risks, costs and benefits associated with an
approved substance or new organism. The EPA may decide to change the controls
placed on the approval or withdraw the approval altogether.

Register

The New Zealand Emission Unit Register. All emission unit holdings are recorded in the
Register.

Registrar

The employee of the EPA appointed to operate the New Zealand Emission Unit Register.

RMA

Resource Management Act 1991.

Te Herenga

A group made up of Māori resource and environmental managers, practitioners or
experts who represent their iwi, hapū or Māori organisations on matters of relevance to
the EPA’s activities and decision making.

UNFCCC

United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, the international
environmental treaty that records the agreement of parties to the convention to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and creates the framework for doing so. The Kyoto Protocol
exists under this Convention.
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